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Directors report

Ask Funding Limited

Directors report

30 June 2009

Your directors present their report on the consolidated entity referred to hereafter as the Group consisting of Ask Funding

Limited formerly Impact Capital Limited and the entities it controlled at the end of or during the year ended 30 June

2009

Directors

The directors of the Company at any time during or since the end of the financial year are

Experience and expertise

Independent non-executive director since 24 January 2005 and chairperson since July 2006

Mr Rich is business and financial management specialist He is director of Rich Co Pty and former director of

Horwath Motor Industry Services Pty Ltd He is member of the Australian institute of Company Directors and the

Institute of Management Consultants

Other current listed company directorships

Nil

Former listed company directorships in last years

Nil

Mr Russell Templeton LLB
t. Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer Age 53

Experience and expertise

Executive director and Chief Executive Officer since 16 November 2004

Mr Templeton has been in practice as lawyer for over twenty years has extensive commercial and litigation experience

and has alsoj3 been involved with network of legal practitioners

L__1 owned licensed commercial agencies

been consultant to and then Chief Operating Officer and Chief Executive Officer of Collection House Limited an

ASX listed debt portfolio manager

Other current listed company directorships

Nil

Li1 Former listed company directorships in last years

Special responsibilities

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Member of Nomination Committee

Mr Kenneth Rich Corn MBA PNA
Chairperson and Independent Non-Executive Director Age 64

Special responsibilities

Chairperson of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee

Member of Risk Management Committee

Member of Nomination Committee
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Ask Funding Limited

Directors report

30 June 2009

continued

Directors continued

Mr Lawrence LItzow FCA ACIS

Independent Non-Executive Director Age 75

xperience and expertise

dependent non-executive director since 16 November 2004 Company Secretary from 16 November 2004 to 30 June

2007

Mr Litzow is Chartered Accountant who has been in private practice for over 40 years and managing partner for six

years He is private equity investor and director and secretary of ASX listed companies His directorships and industry

expertise include minerals and exploration property and construction pharmaceutical information technology media and

marketing and financial services

Mr Litzow has also been committee memberadvising the Commonwealth Minister for Small Business regarding

innovation and chairing sub-committee reporting on small business taxation reform He consults and advises on matters

such as IPOs and economic loss assessments for courts of law

Mr Litzow has resigned as director effective from close of business on 21 August 2009

Other current listed company directorships

Diatreme Resources Limited from January 2002

Superior Resources Limited from 2005 company listed in November 2007

Former listed company directorships in last years

Tamawood Limited June 2000 to March 2006

Special responsibilities

Chairman of Risk Management Committee

--jMember of Audit Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Th Mr John Laurie Ec FCPA

Independent Non-Executive Director Age 74

Experience and expertise

Independent non-executive director since 21 August 2004

Mr Laurie is Chairperson of Twilight House Ltd and director of number of private investment companies His

directorships and industry experience include construction materials agriculture transport contracting aged care and

retirement facilities entertainment and housewares

Other current listed company directorships

Pacific Enviromin Limited formerly Techstar Limited from January 2000

Former listed company directorships in last years

IL Special responsibilitiesLLJ Chairman of Remuneration Committee

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Nomination Committee
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Directors continued

Ask Funding Limited

Directors report

30 June 2009

continued

Ms Aiison Hill Corn MBA CA FFin

Alternate Director for Mr Russell Templeton Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary Age 43

--gxperience and expertise

Iternate Director for Mr Russell Templeton since 26 June 2009

Ms Hill holds Bachelor of Commerce Accountancy from Canterbury University New Zealand and an MBA from Griffith

University Queensland She is Chartered Accountant with more than 20 years experience in public and private

companies in New Zealand Europe and Australia including positions as Group Treasurer with Evans Deakin Industries

Limited and Deputy CFO of Collection House Limited Ms Hill is also CFO and Company Secretary for the Group

Other current listed company directorships

Nil

JjFormer fisted company directorships in last years

Nil

Special responsibilities

Member of the Risk Committee

____ Company Secretary

Ms Alison Hill Com MBA CA FFin was appointed to the position of Company Secretary on 19 December 2006 Ms
Hill has Graduate Diploma in Applied Corporate Governance and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered

Secretaries of Australia Ms Hill is also the Chief Financial Officer for the Group and was appointed to the board as

Alternate Director for Mr Russell Templeton on 26 June 2009

MeetIngs of directors

The number of directors meetings including meetings of committees of directors and number of meetings attended by

each of the directors of the Company during the financial year are

_________ _________ Meetings of committees

Board Audit Risk

Meetings Committee Remuneration Nomination Management

Meetings Committee CommIttee Committee

Meetings Meedng Meetings

Mr Kenneth Rich 15 15

Mr Russell Templeton 15 15
--

Mr Lawrence Litzow 13 15

Mr John Laurie 14 15

Ms Alison Hill

Number of meetings attended

Number of meetings held during the time the director held office or was memberof the committee during the year

Nomination Committee matters have been on the agenda and considered as part of of the 15 Board Meetings held

throughout the year
Not member of the relevant committee

Appointed as Altemate Director to Mr Russell Templeton at the last Board meeting of the year
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Ask Funding Limited

Directors report

30 June 2009

continued

Directors and executive officers remuneration report Company and Consolidated audited

The remuneration report is set out under the foiiowing main headings

Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration

Details of remuneration

Service contracts

Share-based compensation
JJ Consequences of performance on sharehoider wealth

The information provided in this remuneration report has been audited as required by section 3083C of the Corporations

Act 2001

Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration audited

tjThe objectives of the Groups executive compensation strategy are to ensure

it attracts and retains executives with quaiifications experience and industry knowledge appropriate to support the

continued success of the business and creation of sharehoider value and

The strategy impiemented through combination of fixed remuneration and short and long term incentives aligns

executive reward with achievement of strategic objectives and the creation of value for sharehoiders and conforms with

market practice for delivery of reward The Board ensures that the executive compensation strategy satisfies the foilowing

key criteria for good reward and governance practices

competitiveness and reasonableness

acceptability to shareholders

performance iinkage and

transparency

The strategy ensures aiignment to shareholders interests by

having operating profit as core component of pian design

focuses on sustained growth in shareholder weaith and deiivering consistent return on assets as weii as

\j\ focusing the executive on key non-financial drivers of vaiue and

attracting and retaining high caiiber executives

it aiso ensures alignment to the interests of executives by

rewarding capabiiity and experience

reflecting competitive reward for contribution to growth in shareholder wealth

providing clear structure for earning rewards and

providing recognition for contribution

The Board has established remuneration committee which provides advice on remuneration and incentive policies and

J1 practices and specific recommendations on remuneration packages and other terms of employment for executive

directors other senior executives and non-executive directors The Corporate Governance Statement provides further

----- information on the role of this committee

Non-executive directors

\J Li Total compensation for all non-executive directors last voted upon by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on

21 November 2007 is not to exceed $250000 per annum with that sum to be divided amongst the directors in such

manner and proportion as they agree Non-executive directors do not receive any performance-linked compensation

.iJirectors fees cover all main board activities including membership of board committees

Fixed Compensation

Compensation consists of fixed compensation which is calculated on total cost basis and Includes any FBT charges

related to employee benefits as well as any applicable employee contributions to superannuation funds

Fixed compensation levels are reviewed annually by the remuneration committee to ensure that this component is

commensurate with the market worth of the executive role and appropriately reflects the position of the individual within the

roie having regard to qualifications experience and capabilities There are no guaranteed fixed compensation Increases

ii

included within the contractual arrangements with any key management personnel

Performance-linked compensation including consequence of performance on shareholders wealth

Performance linked compensation includes short-term and long-term incentives and is designed to reward key

management personnel for meeting or exceeding annual corporate performance and individual financial and personal

objectives The short-term incentive STI is an at risk bonus provided in the form of cash while the long-term incentive

LTI is provided as options over the ordinary shares of the Company under the rules of the Executive Share Option Plan

see note 29 to financial statements
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Ask Funding Limited

Directors report

30 June 2009

continued

Directors and executive officers remuneration report Company and Consolidated audited continued

Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration audited continued

Short-term incentives

On an annual basis short-term incentive pool is made available to executives excluding the Managing Director and

CEO This pool is distributed amongst relevant executives as cash bonus by measurement against pre-determined

perating profit target and dependent on the accountabilities of the role impact on organisational and team performanceidachievement of individual objectives such that the incentive is leveraged for performance above the threshold to

provide an incentive for out-performance

The use of profit target ensures the variable reward is only available when value has been created for shareholders and

when profit generated is consistent with the business strategy For the year ended 30 June 2009 short-term incentives

were considered but because the business strategy adopted for the year was that of consolidation no incentive pool was

made available The maximum short-term incentive opportunity for the previous year was $100000 per relevant

executive

Long-term incentives

Long-term incentives are provided to executives by the issue of options over ordinary shares of the Company

The inclusion of share price hurdles as qualifying conditions for the exercise of options is considered by the remuneration

committee as reasonable means for ensuring the reward is only available to executives when real and sustained value is

delivered to shareholders

No options have been issued in the current year However the terms of the options previously issued as long-term

incentives are set out on pages 11 12

Other benefits

Key management personnel can receive proportion of their fixed compensation as non-cash benefits under the terms

and conditions of their appointment Non-cash benefits typically include the provisions of items which may be taxed on---concessional basis for FBT purposes Key management personnel are also entitled to salary saciiflce fixed compensation

as additional superannuation contributions

Details of remuneration Audited

_____ The key management personnel of the Group are the directors of Ask Funding Limited and those executives that report

directly to the Managing Director and CEO being

Lyle General Counsel

Gebauers General Manager Compliance and Special Projects

CD Hill Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

Gebauers was appointed as General Manager Compliance and Special Projects on March 2008 Prior to this

appointment he was the companys Chief Operating Officer Amounts shown In the following table include all Mr

Gebauers remuneration during the relevant reporting period whether as the General Manager Compliance and Special

Projects or Chief Operating Officer
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Directors and executive officers remuneration report Company and Consolidated audited continued
Details of remuneration Audited continued

Details of the remuneration of the directors each of the named Company executives who receive the highest remuneration and

other key management personnel as defined in AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures are set out in the following table

______ Short-term employee benefits Post- Other long

employment term

benefits

Cash Non

salary and STI Cash monetary

fees bonus benefits

Name ii iii

Equity- S300A1ei S300AlXeXvi
sethed proportion of /alue of options

share- remuneration proportion of

based performance remuneration

payments related

Total

Super-

annuation

Termination

benefits

Options

iv Total

Non-executive directors

Rich 2009

2008

36697

36697

36697

36697
3303
3303

40000

40000

-9

-9

Litzow 2009

2008

29000
29000

29000

29000
29000
29000

If

If

-9

Laurie 2009

2008

29000
29000

29000

29000

29000

29000

-If

If

-9

-9

Executive directors

Templeton Managing Director and

CEO

Hill Chief Financial Officer and

Company Secretary Alternate for

Templeton

Other key management personnel

Lyle General Counsel

Gebauers General Manager

Compliance and Special Projects

2009

2008

2009

2008

2009

2008

2009

2008

502123

460437

219813

208575

231422

236526

19662
184.846

5600

5546

5600
5.546

507723

465983
43409
38871

66210

60507

617342

565361

10.7

10.7 If

10.79

10.7

219813

208575

19912

18054

12651

11627

252376
238256

5.0 If

4.9 If

5.09

4.9

231422
236526

21082

19245

12651

11627

265155

267398

4.8 If

4.3 If

4.89

4.3

201262
190.392

17197
17.133

10121

9.301

228580
218826

4.4 If

4.3 If

4.41

4.3

Hill was appointed as Alternate Director to Mr Russell Templeton on 26 June 2009 Amounts shown above indude all Ms Hills

remuneration during the reporting period

includes salary salary sacrificed benefits excluding superannuation and leave provisions

ii STI relates to performance in the current financial year

RJL
iii includes the value of goods and services provided including fringe benefits tax

iv The fair value of the options is calculated using Black-Scholes and Binomial option pricing models and allocated to each reporting

period evenly over the period from grant date to vesting date The value disclosed is the portion of the fair value of the options recognised

in this reporting period
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Ask Funding Umited

Directors report

30 June 2009

continued

Directors and executive officers remuneration report Company and Consolidated audited continued

Service contracts audited

The Group has formalised service contracts with each key management person The service contracts excluding that of

the Managing Director and CEO are unlimited in term but are capable of termination with between and 24 months

notice where the Group retains the right to terminate the contract immediately by making payment equal to 100 per cent of

ase salary for the relevant period in lieu of notice The key management personnel are also entitled to receive on

rmination of their employment their statutory entitlements of accrued annual and long service leave together with any

______ superannuation benefits

.J The service contracts outline the components of compensation paid but do not prescribe how compensation levels are

modified year to year Compensation levels are reviewed by the remuneration committee to take into account cost of living

changes changes if any to the scope of the role performed by the key management person and any changes required to

meet the principles of the compensation policy

Mr Russell Templeton the Managing Director and CEO has contract of employment dated July 2007 with the Group

The contract specifies the duties and obligations to be fulfilled by the Chief Executive Officer The contract is unlimited in

term but is capable of termination with months notice by Mr Templeton or 24 months notice by the Group or in specific

circumstances 30 months notice The Group retains the right to terminate the contract immediately by making payment

equal to 100 per cent of base salary for the relevant period in lieu of notice Mr Templeton is entitled to receive on

termination of his employment his statutory entitlements of accrued annual and long service leave together with any

superannuation benefits but has no entitlement to termination pay in the event of removal for misconduct

The Group has not entered into any formal service contracts with its non-executive directors

Share-based compensation audited

L_. Options over the ordinary shares of Ask Funding Limited are granted under the terms of the Ask Funding Limited

Executive Option Plan which was approved by shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 21 November 2007

The Executive Option Plan is designed to provide long-term incentives for executives including executive directors to

deliver long-term shareholder returns Under the plan executives are granted options which only vest If the executive

completes specified period of service The plan states that the determination of the exercise conditions are at the

discretion of the directors and will depend on
the relevant Executive or the Company satisfying an objective performance criteria

the Companys Share price on the Australian Securities Exchange Limited reaching certain price or

other performance criteria determined by the Directors

The terms and conditions of each grant of options affecting remuneration in the previous this or future reporting periods

are as follows

Executive directors

Other key manag9nent personnel

Options granted under the plan carry no dividend or voting rights

The exercise price of options is determined by the directors but is no less than the volume weighted average price at which

the Companys shares are traded on the Australian Stock Exchange during the five trading days Immediately before the

options are granted or such other price as approved by shareholders in general meeting

Name Number of options

granted

Grant date

Templeton

Hill

Fair value per ExercIse prIce

optIon at grant per optIon
data

Date

exercIsable

370000

370000

370000

50000

50000

50.000

23/11/2007

23/11/2007

23/11/2007

23/11/2007

23/11/2007

23/11/2007

Expiry date ExercIse

hurdle

.k It

0.154

0.144

0.136

0.221

0.213

0.174

L1e

Gebauers

0.600

0.600

0.600

0.645

0.645

0.645

23/11/2008

23/11/2009

23/11/2010

23/11/2008

23/11/2009

23/11/2010

50000

50000

50000

40000
40000

40000

23111/2012

23/11/2012

23/11/2012

23/11/2012

23/11/2012

23/11/2012

0.80

1.10

1.50

0.80

1.10

1.50

23/11/2007

23/11/2007

23/11/2007

23/11/2007

23/11/2007

23/11/2007

0.221

0.213

0.174

0.221

0.213

0.174

0.645

0.645

0.645

0.645

0.645

0.645

23/11/2008

23/11/2009

23/11/2010

23/11/2008

23/11/2009

23/11/2010

23/11/2012

23/11/2012

23/11/2012

23/11/2012

23/11/2012

23/11/2012

0.80

1.10

1.50

0.80

1.10

1.50
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Earnings

Net interest and fee income

Net operating profit before tax

EPS

Shareholder value

Share price

Dividends paid/declared

Ask Funding Limited

Directors report

30 June 2009

continued

Directors and executive officers remuneration report Company and Consolidated audited continued

Share-based compensation audited continued
The Group as part of its Share Trading Policy prohibits those executives including executive directors that are granted

share-based payments as part of their remuneration from entering into other arrangements that limit their exposure to

losses that would result from share price decreases The Group requires all relevant executives to sign annual

-eclarations of compliance with this policy throughout the period

etails of options over ordinary shares in the Company that were granted as compensation to each key management

person during the reporting period and details on options that vested during the reporting period are as follows

Name

Executive directors

Number of options granted

durlna the veer

2009 2008

Number of options vested

durina th veer

2009 2008

Templeton 370000 370000

370000

370000

Hill 50000 50000

50000

50000

Other key management personnel

Lyle 50000 50000

Gebauers 40000 40000
40000

_____________________________________________ 40000

The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted to the individuals is allocated equally over the period from grant

date to vesting date and the amount is included in the remuneration tables above Fair values at grant date are

independently determined using Black-Schoies and Binomial option pricing models that take into account the exercise

price the term of the option the impact of dilution the share price at grant date and expected price volatility
of the

underlying share the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the option

Consequences of performance on shareholder wealth audited

Performance of Ask Funding Limited

As outlined above one of the objectives of the Groups executive compensation strategy is to ensure the reward provided

to executives is aligned to growth in shareholder value in both the short and long term

STI results and payments
In determining the use of operating profit before tax as the key driver for STI rewards in the current financial year the

remuneration committee considered both profit performance over the past three financial years and the essential role of

L- executive reward in driving the operational performance of the Group and delivering real and sustained Increases In

shareholder value

following table shows increases achieved in underlying business growth despite the decision not to make available

short-term incentive pool in the current financial year

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

30 June 2009 30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2006

Adjusted in 2008 and 2007 for gain ioss on saie and diiution and impairment relating to the Companys investment in impact

Holdings UK Plc

12470659
4993814

0.054

8960903
3950431

0.030

5961692
2511126

0.005

0.180

2833398
64235

0.002

0.495 0.665 0.400
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Ask Funding Limited

Directors report

30 June 2009

continued

Directors and executive officers remuneration report Company and Consolidated audited continued

Consequences of perfonnance on shareholder wealth audIted continued

Shareholder value and earnings history is provided only in respect of the financial years since the reverse acquisition of

Ask Funding Limited

result

determining the use of the Companys share price as an appropriate performance hurdle for the exercise of vested

options the remuneration committee recognised that this was key indicator of shareholder value

Details of remuneration cash bonuses and options

For each cash bonus and grant of options included in the tables on pages 10 and 11 the percentage of the available

bonus or grant that was paid or that vested in the financial year and the percentage that was forfeited because the

person did not meet the service criteria is set out below The options vest over next two years provided the vesting

conditions are met see page 11 above

Financial Number 01

years In options

which vested

options Number during

may vest granted 2009

2009 370000 370000

2010 370000

2011 370000

Hill 2008 100 2009 50000 50000

2008 2010 50000

2008 2011 50000

Lyle 2008 100 2009 50000 50000

2008 2010 50000

2008 2011 50000

Gebauers 2008 100 2009 40000 40000
2008 2010 40000

2008 2011 40000

________
These options whilst vested cant be exercised until the qualifying share price is reached

1/ No terms of equity-settled share-based payment transactions including option and.rights granted as compensation to

key management person have been altered or modified by the issuing entity duPing the reporting period or the prior

period

Ffl PrIncipal activities

The principal activities of the Group during the course of the financial year were outlay funding and presettlement lending

to claimants awaiting settlement of injuries matrimonial or estate litigation in Australia and New Zealand

July 2008 the Group established an incorporated legal practice Arc Legal Pty Ltd the principal activity of which is the

irovision of legal assessment and recovery services These services to date have only been provided to other members

of the consolidated group

There were no significant changes in the nature of the activities of the Group during the year

Review of operations

Overview of the consolidated entity

Notwithstanding sustained demand for all products during the year the deterioration in asset values and in particular

11 ii property has been such that the Group adopted conservative approach and moderated the rate of lending in its

matrimonial and estate lending products

Whilst this strategy has resulted in an increase in the gross loan book of only percent to $66.9 million the consolidated

operating profit before tax has increased to $5.0 million reflecting the Groups focus on cost control and risk mitigation

Furthermore the Group has successfully operated within the constraints of its current available capital and as result of

strong cash inflows in the last six months has reduced its net debt at 30 June 2009 by $1.7 million to $42.4 million of the

$55.5 million facility available

Name

STI Cash bonus

RTempleton

Lii flptlons

Paid Forfeited

Year

granted Vested Forfeited

2008

2008

2008

100
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Ask Funding Limited

Directors report

30 June 2009

continued

Review of operations continued

This has resulted in the declaration of maiden dividend of 1.3 cents per share fully-franked from current year profits

which is to be paid on 19 November 2009

Review of financial performance and position

Consolidated operating profit after tax

the year ended 30 June 2009 the consolidated net profit attributable to members was $3.5 million which represents

significant increase of 84 percent from the prior year profit after tax of $1.9 million

The prior year profit included loss on the sale of the remainder of the Companys passive investment in Impact Holdings

UK Plc of $0.81 million No non-operating profits or losses are attributable to the current year profit

Earnings per share increased to 5.4 cents

Profit from operations

The Groups operations have performed well in light of the difficult economic conditions that prevailed for the majority of

the financial year resulting in an operating profit before tax of $5.0 million which represents 25 percent increase when

compared with the operating profit before tax and sale of UK investment of $4.0 million in the prior year

Consolidated gross interest and fee income was up 31 percent to $16.2 million from $12.4 million previously reflecting

both an increased margin and an increased average gross loan book of $65.7 million compared to $52.0 million in the

prior year

Interest expense increased by only $0.4 million to $3.8 million as the effect of the increase in average gross debt from $35

million in the prior year to $45.0 million was partially offset by the reduction in average base funding costs BBSW
experienced in the current year At the end of the financial year the base funding cost including costs of the Interest Rate

Swap was 351 bps

________
The amount provisioned for impaired loans increased significantly to $2.2 million from $0.3 million In the prior year

reflecting the prudent and conservative approach taken by the Group in light of the deterioration in the economy the

resultant drop in asset values corresponding increase in bankruptcies and spike in unemployment rates The difficult

economic conditions experienced in Australia and New Zealand during the financial year has led to an increase in specific

exposures despite strict adherence to lending policies and procedures

Th Shareholder returns

---J As result of the significant increase in profitability the directors have recommended the payment of final dividend from

current year profits of 1.3 cents per share fully franked

Significant changes in the state of affairs

There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated group during the year other than as dealt

with in this report

DivIdends Ask Funding Limited

No dividends were paid or declared during the year

Additionally loan recovery costs of $0.4 million have been incurred 2008 nil which represent additional resources

deployed in the course of loan recovery actions and other costs incurred to enhance the Groups security position the

benefit of which is expected to be more completely reflected in future reporting periods

Other cash expenses have increased by percent over the prior year which reflects ongoing strategic investments in

marketing platforms and IT systems

Ct Capital structure and gearing

Consolidated interest bearing debt at the end of the financial year was $45.0 million 2008 $45.0 millionwhich represents

63 percent of book assets 2008 65 percent and gearing ratio of 63 percent 2008 68 percent further $10.5 million

of the debt facility was unutilised at 30 June 2009 This level of gearing is considered appropriate given the Groups

-ii
business model and the relative liquidity of the Groups assets

Consolidated net assets

Consolidated net assets have increased to $24.6 million from $21.0 million in the prior year

L_cash flows

Consolidated cash flows from operations were net outflow for the year of $0.4 million The apparent deterioration from

the prior year net inflow of $0.2 million is due to significant amount of tax paid In the current year $2.2 million as the

Group changed from an annual to quarterly installment basis These cash flows will normalise in the coming financial

year

-14-



Ask Funding Limited

Directors report

30 June 2009

continued

Dividends Ask Funding Limited continued

Subsequent to the balance sheet date the directors have recommended the payment of
fully

franked finai ordinary

dividend of $847000 1.3 cents per share from current year profits The financial effect of this dividend has not been

brought to account in the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2009 and wiii be recognised in subsequent

flnanciai reports

Events subsequent to reporting date

Other than referred to above in the interval between the end of the financiai year and the date of this report no transaction

or event of material and unusual nature has arisen which in the opinion of the directors of the Company is iikeiy to

sign iflcantiy affect the operations of the Group the resuits of those operations or the state of affairs of the Group in future

financial years

10 Likely developments and expected results of operations

The Group will continue to pursue its policy of increasing its profitability and market share particularly in respect of its

Personal Injury and Outlay Funding products within Australia during the next financial year

Further information about likely developments in the operations of the Group and the expected results of those operations

in future financial years has not been included in this report as disclosure of the information would be likely to result in

unreasonable prejudice to the Group

11 Share options

Options granted to directors and officers of the Company
Linissued shares under optIons

Unissued ordinary shares of Ask Funding Limited under option at the date of this report are as follows

No options have been granted since the end of the financial year

Ask Funding Limited

Exercise price of Number of shares

Expiry date options under option

Shares issued on exercise of options

During or since the end of the financial year the Group has not issued any ordinary shares as result of the exercise of

options

Date Options granted

23 November 2007

23 November 2007ii
23 November 2012

23 November2012

$0.645

$0.600

420000

1.110.000

1.530.000
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Ask Funding Umited

Directors report

3OJune2009

continued

12 Directors interests

The relevant interest of each director in the shares debentures interests in registered schemes and rights or options over

such instruments issued by the companies within the Group and other related bodies corporate as notified by the directors

to the Australian Stock Exchange in accordance with S205G1 of the Corporations Act 2001 at the date of this report is

follows

Ask Funding Limited

Options over

Ordinary shares ordinary shares

Rich 100000

Templeton 1944270 1110000
Litzow 2480000
Laurie 85000

Hill Alternate for Templeton 162607 150000

13 Earnings per share

2009 2008

Cents Cents

Basic earnings per share

Profit from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the

company 5.4 3.0

Diluted earnings per share

Profit from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the

company 5.4 3.0

14 IndemnIfication and insurance of officers and auditors

During the financial year Ask Funding Limited paid premium to insure the directors and officers of the Company and of

-----i the Group against liabilities incurred by such an officer to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001 The officers

ED
of the Group covered by the insurance policy include any person acting In the course of duties for the Group who is or was

director secretary or executive officer as well as senior executive staff The contract of insurance prohibits the

disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of the premium

The Company has agreed to indemnify its directors and the directors of its controlled entities against any liability to

another person other than the Company or related body corporate that may arise from their position as directors of the

Company and as directors of its controlled entities except where the liability arises out of conduct involving lack of good

r---i faith The agreement stipulates that the Company will meet the full amount of any such liabilities including costs and

expenses

Ri The Company has not entered into any agreement with their current auditors KPMG indemnifying against claims from

third parties arising from their report on the annual report or their position as auditor

Non-audit services

During the year KPMG the Companys auditor has performed certain other services in addition to their statutory duties

The board has considered the non-audit services provided during the year by the auditor and in accordance with written

advice provided by resolution of the audit committee is satisfied that the provision of those non-audit services during the

year by the auditor is compatible with and did not compromise the auditor independence requirements of the

Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons

all non-audit services were subject to the corporate governance procedures adopted by the Company and have

been reviewed by the audit committee to ensure they do not impact the integrity and objectivity of the audltor

II
and

the non-audit services provided do not undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set

out in APES 110 Code Of Ethics For Professional Accountants as they did not Involve reviewing or auditing the

auditors own work acting in management or decision making capacity for the Company acting as an

advocate for the Company or jointly sharing risks and rewards
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15 Non-audit services continued
Details of the amounts paid to the auditor of the Company KPMG and its related practices hr audit and non-audit services

provided during the year are set out below in addition amounts paid to other auditors for the statutory audit have been

disciosed

Consolidated

2009 2008

cThjCJ
Audit services

Auditors of the Company

KPMG Australia

Audit and review of financiai reports 117075 108887

Overseas KPMG firms

Audit and review of financial reports 1.615 2.013

Total remuneration for audit services 118.690 110.900

Services other than statutory audit

Other assurance services

KPMG Australia

Compliance assurance services 22000 22000

Other services

KPMG Australia

Taxation compliance services 16048 8635

Corporate advisory services 1826 197036

Overseas KPMG firms

Taxation compliance services 3754 2844
Other advisory services 10.982

Total remuneration for audit-related services 54.610 230.515

16 Lead auditors independence deciaration

copy of the auditors independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 Is set out on

_____
page 18

This report is made in accordance with resolution of directors

Kenneth Rich

Brisbane 21 August 2009
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Lead Auditors Independence Declaration under Section 307C of

the Corporations Act 2001 to the directors of Ask Funding Limited

formerly Impact Capitai Limited

declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief in relation to the audit for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

here
have been

________ no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out In the Corporations Act 2001 In relation

to the audit and

______ no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit

KPM
KPMG

vv1c

Jillian Richards

Partner

Bnsbane 21 August 2009
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Corporate governance statement

This statement outlines the main corporate governance practices in place throughout the financial year which comply with

the ASX Corporate Council recommendations unless otherwise stated

The board of dIrectors

The board operates in accordance with the broad principles set out in its charter The charter details the boards

mposition and responsibilities and establishes those functions which are delegated to management and can be located

________ on the Corporate Governance information section of the Companys website www.askfunding.com.au

Role of the board

The boards primary role is the creation and protection of sustainable shareholder value To fulfill this role the board is

responsible for the overall corporate governance of the group including

charting the corporate strategy and financial objectives of the group and ensuring appropriate resources are

available for their implementation

monitoring the implementation of those policies and strategies and the achievement of those financial

objectives

monitoring compliance with control and accountability systems regulatory requirements and ethical standards

ensuring the preparation of accurate financial reports and statements

reporting to shareholders and the investment community on the performance and state of the Group and

reviewing on regular and continuing basis

executive remuneration

executive succession planning and

executive development activities

The board has formally delegated responsibility for the day to day operation and administration of the Group and the

implementation of the corporate strategy to the Managing Director and the senior executives These delegations are

reviewed on an annual basis

ComposItIon of the board

\Tj
The charter states that the board membership is determined using the following principles

majority of independent directors

mix of directors from different backgrounds with an appropriate range of skills and experience who are able to

competently deal with current and emerging business issues

sufficient number of directors to serve on various committees without overburdening the directors or making it

difficult to fully discharge their responsibilities

directors who have the time available to undertake the responsibilities and can effectively review challenge and

critique the performance of management and

the Chair must be an independent director who is appointed by the majority of the other directors

Directors Independence
izi An independent director is director who is not memberof management non-executive director and who

holds less than five percent of the voting shares of the Company and is not an officer of or otherwise

associated directly or indirectly with shareholder of more than five percent of the voting power of the

Company
has not within the last three years been employed in an executive capacity by the Company or another Group

member or been director after ceasing to hold any such employment
within the last three years has not been principal or employee of material professional adviser or material

consultant to the Company or any other Group member
is not material supplier or customer of the Company or any other Group member or an officer of or otherwise

associated directly or indirectly with material supplier or customer

has no material contractual arrangements with the Company or any other Group member other than as

director of the Company and

is free from any business or other relationship which could or could reasonably be perceived to materially

interfere with the directors independent exercise of their judgement

1LfL Board members

L_j Details of the members of the board their experience expertise qualifications period of office and their independence

status are set out in the Directors Report under the heading of Directors

At the date of signing the Directors Report there were three non-executive directors two of whom have no relationship

adversely affecting independence as set out in the principles above Mr Lltzow has had dealings with the Company as

disclosed in note 23d to the financial report however these were not of value or significance that adversely affects his

independence
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Chair and Managing Director

The Chair is responsible for leading the board ensuring directors are properly briefed in all matters relevant to their role

and responsibilities facilitating board discussions and managing the boards relationship with the companys senior

executives

The Managing Director is responsible for management of the day to day activities of the Group and implementation of the

rporate strategy financial objectives and policies

Induction

The Company has an informal process to educate new directors about the nature of the business financial position

current issues corporate strategy and the expectations of the group concerning performance of directors This process

enables them to actively participate in board decision making as soon as possible

Performance assessment

The nomination committee undertakes an annual assessment of the collective performance of the Board and that of

individual directors and of the committees by examining the appropriate mix of skills to ensure maximum effectiveness and

contribution to the results The results and any action plans are documented together with any specific goals which may

be agreed to in respect of the coming year An assessment in accordance with this process was undertaken in June 2008

...
______ The nomination committee is also responsible for undertaking an annual assessment of the Managing Director and of the

Company Secretary which last took place in August 2008 and August 2009 respectively

The Managing Director is responsible for undertaking an annual review of the performance of senior executives which last

took place in August 2008

Independent professional advice

Each director has the right in connection with their duties and responsibilities to seek independent professional advice

from suitably qualified adviser at the Groups expense The director must obtain the Chairs approval of the fee payable

for the advice before proceeding with the consultation

All of the matters determined by the committees are submitted to the full board as recommendations for board decisions

jMinutes of the committee meetings are tabled at the subsequent board meeting

__________

Nomination committee

The board as whole currently comprises the nomination committee and meets annually on these matters unless

otherwise required The number of times the committee met during the year and committee members attendance record

is disclosed in the table of directors meetings on page

The nomination committee operates in accordance with its charter which is available on the Companys website The main

responsibilities of the committee are to

reviewing board succession plans and evaluating desirable competencies for board members

determining the selection criteria when board vacancy exists or need for particular skills is deemed necessary

identifying potential candidates culminating in the recommendation of the most suitable candidate

undertaking the annual assessment of the collective performance of the board and

undertaking the annual assessment of the performance of individual directors Managing Director and Company

Secretary

The board considers the results of the assessments of individual directors in the endorsement of directors seeking re

election by shareholders Such endorsement is not automatic and considers the current and future needs of the

Company

Conflict of interests

Mr Litiow and an entity related to Mr Templeton had business dealings with the Company during the year as described in

note 23d to the financial report In accordance with the board Charter the directors concerned declared their interest to

the board and took no part in decisions relating to them or in preceding discussions

Board committees

The board has established number of committees to assist in the execution of its duties and to allow detailed

consideration of complex issues Current committees of the board are the nomination remuneration and audit

committees

Each committee has its own written charter setting out its role and responsibilities composition structure membership

requirements and the manner in which the committee is to operate All of these charters are reviewed on an annual basis

and are available on the Companys website
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The board appoints the most suitable candidate who must stand for election at the next annual general meeting of the

company Notices for meetings for the election of directors comply with the ASX Corporate Governance Councils best

practice recommendations

The terms and conditions of the appointment of directors are set out in letter of appointment including expectations of

attendance and preparation for all board meetings minimum hourly commitment and If required the appointments to other

ards All new directors participate in the induction process outlined above

RemuneratIon commIttee

The remuneration committee consists of the following independent non-executive directors

Mr John Laurie Chair

Mr Kenneth Rich

The remuneration committee meets at least twice per year or as otherwise required The number of times the committee

met during the year and the committee members attendance record is disclosed in the table of directors meetings on

page

Ej
The remuneration committee operates in accordance with its charter which is available on the Companys website The

main responsibilities of the committee are to

review and make specific recommendations to the board on remuneration packages and other terms of

employment applicable to executive directors other senior executives and non-executive directors

review of targets and performance indicators both on an individual and corporate basis to ensure that the short

and long term incentive components of remuneration packages which are contingent upon achievement of such

targets are consistent with the Groups remuneration strategy

review of the performance of senior executives in the prior year to determine whether the performance targets and

objectives have been met and where applicable the level of payout and

review of terms of share option and other incentives schemes and fringe benefit policies

Further information on directors and executives remuneration including pnnciples used to determine remuneration is set

out in the Directors Report under the heading Directors and executive officers remuneration report

In accordance with Group policy participants in equity-based remuneration plans are not permitted to enter into any
transactions that would limit the economic risk of options or other unvested entitlements Details of this policy can be

found in the Share Trading Policy which is available on the Companys website

AudIt commIttee

The audit committee consists of the following independent non-executive directors

Mr Kenneth Rich Chair

Mr John Laurie

j75 Mr Lawrie Litzow resigned 21 August 2009

Details of these directors qualifications and attendance at audit committee meetings are set out in the Directors report on

rLJ pages to All members of the committee are financially literate and have an appropriate understanding of the industry

in which the Company operates Mr Rich is Professional National Accountant and Mr Litzow is Chartered Accountant

The audit committee operates in accordance with charter which is available on the Companys website The main

responsibilities of the committee are to

review and assess the annual and half year financial reports and other financial information published by the Group

or released to the market This includes approving new accounting policies to ensure compliance with Australian

Accounting Standards AASBs and assessing whether the financial information is adequate for shareholder needs

assist the board in conjunction with the risk committee in reviewing the corporate risk assessment processes and

_____ internal control systems to ensure they deal with both the effectiveness and efficiency of operations the
reliability

of

financial information and compliance with applicable laws and regulations

recommend to the board the appointment removal and remuneration of external auditors reviewing their terms of

engagement and the scope and quality of the audit and provide forum for effective communication between the

fl
board and the external auditor

Li consider the independence of the external auditor on an on-going basis

review and approve the level of non-audit services provided by the external auditors and ensure It does not

adversely impact on auditor independence

review and monitor related party transactions and assess their propriety and

report to the board on matters relevant to the committees role and responsibilities
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In fulfilling its responsibilities the audit committee

receives regular reports from management and the external auditors

meets with the external auditors at least twice year and provides the opportunity for additional meetings

separately without the presence of management

reviews any significant disagreements between the external auditors and management Irrespective of whether

they have been resolved and

reviews the processes the Managing Director and CFO have in place to support their certifications to the board

External auditors

The Groups and audit committee policy is to appoint external auditors who clearly demonstrate quality and independence

and the performance of the external auditor is reviewed annually KPMG was appointed as the external auditor of the

Company for the year ended 30 June 2006 It is KPMGs policy to rotate the audit engagement partners on listed

companies every five years Accordingly the first rotation of audit engagement partner will occur in the financial year

ending 30 June 2011

An analysis of fees paid to the external auditors including break-down of fees for non-audit services is provided in the

Directors report under the heading of Non-audit servicestm and also in note6 to the financial report It is the policy of the

external auditors to provide an annual declaration of their independence to the audit committee

The external auditor will attend the annual general meeting and be available to answer shareholder questions about the

conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the audit report

Risk management committee

The board has established separate committee to oversee the establishment implementation and annual review of the

Groups Risk Management System which is designed to identify assess manage and monitor all material business risks

The risk management committee consists of persons with the relevant experience qualifications and skills in the business

of the Group its industry and business generally and therefore is not limited to independent non-executive directors The

members of the risk management committee during the year were

Mr Lawrie Litzow Chair Independent non-executive director resigned 21 August 2009
Mr Kenneth Rich Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr Brian Gebauers General Manager Compliance Special Projects

Ms Alison Hill Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

The risk management committee operates in accordance with charter which is available on the Companys website The

main responsibilities of the committee are to

approve frameworks systems and policies with respect to risk assessment and management in respect of but

not limited to material strategic operational financial legal and reputational risks

oversee compliance systems policies and procedures by which management ensures Its legal obligations are

met and

in conjunction with the audit committee to oversee internal control systems and procedures to ensure the

safeguarding of assets maintenance of financial records and data contained therein and Identification of

significant threats including fraud

Considerable importance is placed on maintaining strong control environment There Is an organisation structure with

L9 clearly drawn lines of accountability and delegation of authority Adherence of the Code of Conduct refer below is

required at all times and the board actively promotes culture of quality and integrity Formal performance appraisals are

-\ conducted at least annually for all employees Training and development and appropriate remuneration and incentives

Lith regular performance reviews create an environment of cooperation and constructive dialogue with employees and

1enior management

Control procedures exist which cover management and financial reporting health and safety compliance and other

management issues Each senior manager reports on compliance with these procedures as applicable to their business

unit on quarterly basis to the risk management committee and to the board The risk management committee was

however delayed in its review and provision of the annual summary on risk management effectiveness and will be

providing this report to the Board as an output from the next scheduled committee meeting

fl
The risk management committee meets four times per year or as otherwise required The number of times the committee

Li met during the year and the committee members attendance record is disclosed in the table of directors meetings onL_J page

Corporate reporting

The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer have made the following declarations to the board

that the Companys financial reports are complete and present true and fair view in all material respects of the

financial condition and operational results of the Company and Group and are in accordance with the relevant

accounting standards and
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that the above statement is founded on sound system of risk management and internal compliance and control

which implements the policies adopted by the board and that the Companys risk management and Internal

compliance control is operating efficiently and effectively in all material respects in relation to financial reporting

risks

nvlronmental regulation

he Groups operations are not subject to any significant environmental regulations under either Commonwealth or State

legislation However the board believes that the Group has adequate systems in place for the management of its

_- environmental requirements and is not aware of any breach of those environmental requirements as they apply to the

Group

Greenhouse gas and energy data repotlng requIrements

The Groups operations are not subject to the reporting requirements of either the Energy Efficiency Opportunities Act

2006 or the National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting Act 2007 The Group will continue to monitor the relevant

legislation to ensure it meets any operational and reporting requirements as and when they become applicable to its

activities

Code of Conduct

The Group has developed Code of Conduct the Code which has been fully endorsed by the board and applies to all

directors and employees The Code is regularly reviewed and updated as necessary to ensure it reflects the highest

standards of behaviour and professionalism and the practices necessary to maintain confidence in the Groups integrity

and to take into account legal obligations and reasonable expectations of the Companys stakeholders

In summary the Code requires that all personnel of the Group act at all times with the utmost integrity objectivity and in

compliance with the letter and the
spirit of the law and group policies The Code requires employees who are aware of

unethical practices within the Group or breaches of the Code to report these using the procedure outlined within the Code
All reports remain anonymous

The Code of Conduct is set out in the Employee Handbook and Is discussed with each new employee as part of their

induction training The Code is available on the Companys website

TradIng in general Company securIties by dIrectors and employees
The Group has established Share Trading Policy which has been fully endorsed by the board and applies to all directors

and employees This policy is regularly reviewed and updated as necessary to ensure it reflects the practices necessary

_____ to maintain confidence in the Groups integrity and to take into account legal obligations and reasonable expectations of

the Companys stakeholders

The key elements of the Groups Share Trading Policy are

the prohibition from trading in the Companys securities

while in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information concerning the Company

during specified trading blackout periods and

for short term speculative gains

the prohibition from entering into transactions in financial products which operate to limit the economic risk of both

vested or unvested holdings in the Companys securities including without limitation any hedging or similar

arrangement in respect of unvested entitlements or restricted entitlements held or granted under any equity based

remuneration scheme and

the prohibition from entering into any stock lending or similar arrangement in relation to holdings of the Companys
securities by directors and senior executives

The Share Trading Policy is set out in the Employee Handbook and is discussed with each new employee as part of their

induction training Directors and senior executives are asked to sign an annual declaration confirming their compliance

with the policy The Share Trading Policy is available on the Companys webslte

CommunIcatIon with shareholders

The Group has policy on information disclosure that focus on continuous disclosure of any information concerning the

group that reasonable person would expect to have material effect on the price of the Companys securities This

policy also includes the arrangements the Company has in place to promote communicate with shareholders and

encourage effective participation at general meetings The Disclosure and Communications Policy is available on the

Companys website

The board has nominated the Managing Director and the Company Secretary as being responsible for communications

with the Australian Securities Exchange ASX Investing community and media This includes the responsibility for

ensuring compliance with the continuous disclosure requirements in the ASX Listing Rules and overseeing and co

ordinating information disclosure to the relevant parties

Lft3
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The Companys website provides link to the ASXs company reporting platform such that all information disclosed to ASX
is available from the website as soon as it is disclosed to the ASX including all material used in presentations to analysts

providing updates on the Groups operations

The board encourages full participation of shareholders at general meetings of the Company to ensure high level of

accountability and identification with the Groups strategy and goals
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income statements

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

terest income

Notes

14489814 11369572 14000064 10893518
terest expense 3.764.17fl 3.391.130 3.764.lTfl 3.391.118

Net interest income 10125637 7978442 10235907 7502400

EIII Fee income 1745022 982461 1690857 947335

Other operating gains losses 807817 306639 727791

Expenses

Employee benefits expense 2902399 2846372 2835587 2807028
Depreciation and amortisation expense 102933 121.522 106219 121.029

Impairment of loans and advances 2152462 300249 1925296 350519
Loan documentation expenses 17500 4000 17500 4000
Loan recovery expenses 356015 620152
Marketing expenses 620792 444053 589789 394368
Occupancy expenses 264506 245745 256086 239654
General and administrative expenses 812633 942859 2600252 922355
IT development expenses 96288 96288
Other expenses 151317 96228 150770 95517
Change in fair value of investments 11 9.444 9.444

Profit before income tax 4993814 3142614 3035464 2778030

Income tax expense 1.449.128 .215.473 90L132 1.107.126

Profit for the period 3.544.686 1.927.141 2.127.332 1.670.904

Cents CentstJ Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 5.4 3.0

Diluted earnings per share 5.4 3.0

The above income statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

pi
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For the year ended 30 June 2009

Share based

Contributed Translation Hedging payments Retained

Consolidated equity reserve reserve reserve profits Total

alance at July2007 1831097 i.5 747874 19110505
-xchange differences on translation of

foreign operation 156.540 158540
Net income/expense recognised

directly in equity 156540 156540

Profit for year 1.927.141 1.927.141

Total recognised Income and

expensefortheyear 156.540 1.927.141 1.770.601

Employee share options value of

CJ
employee services 93.062 93.062

Balance at 30 June 2008 18.361.097 155.006 93.062 2.675.015 20.974.168

Balance at July2008 18361097 155006 93062 2675015 20974168
Effective portion of changes in fair

value of cash flow hedges net of tax 12354 12354
Exchange differences on translation of

foreign operation 2.078 2.078

Net income/expense recognised

directly in equity 2078 12354 10276

Profit for year 3.544.686 3.544.686

Total recognised income and

expanse for the year 2.078 2.354 3.544.686 3.534410

Employee share options value of

employee services 101.634 101.634

Balance at 30 June 2009 18.361.097 152.928 12.354 194.696 6.219.701 24.610.212

-1

L1
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Share

based Retained

Contributed Hedging payments profits

The Company equity reserve reserve losses Total

21Balance at Juiy 2007 24580445 7620418 16960027
Profit for year 1.670.904 1.670.904

Total recognised Income and expense for the

year 1.670.904 1.670.904

Employee share options value of employee

services 93.062 93.062

Balance at 30 June 2008 24.580.445 93.062 15.949.514 18.723.993

Balance at July2008 24580445 93062 5949514 18723993
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash

flow hedges 12.354 12.354
Net income/expense recognised directly in equity 12354 12354

Profit for year 2.127.332 2.127.332

Total recognised Income and expense for the

year 12.354 2.127.332 2.1 14.978

Employee share options value of employee
services 101.634 101.634

Balance at 30 June 2009 24.580.445 12.354 194.696 13.822.182 20.940.605

The statements of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

tJ
1N
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Balance sheets

As at 30 June 2009

_ASSETS
I-eash and cash equivalentsELJJ Net loans and advances

Other financial assets

Trade and other receivables

Deferred tax assets

Property plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

lnterest-beanng loans and borrowings

Derivative financial instruments

Income tax payable

Employee benefits

Total liabilItIes

Net assets

-1 EQUITY

flV3\ Contributed equity

Reserves

Retained profits/Iosses

Total equity

/1

724952

64084500

The Company
2008

712857

61341351

4883321
2784270

606539

190982

193055

948.656

71.661.031

Notes

Consolidated

2009 2008 2009

1801409
10 64911646
11

1774135
62443617
4883321

12 1188326 1055490 2885022
13 923159 622957 906531

147329 188596 147329
14 1587078 1146493 632708

15 789.913 952.654 780.954

71.348.860 68.775.642 74.453.677

16 761068

17 44890630
18 17649

19 827936

20 241.365

46.738.648

673571

45455757

13331
339.030

47.801.474

7539766 5809217
44890630 45455757

17649

827936 1333034
237.091 339.030

53.513.072 52.937.038

20.940.605 18.723.99324.610.212 20.974.168

18361097
29414

210701
24.610.212

18361097

61944
2675.015

20.974.168

24580445
182342

3.822.1R2
20.940.605

The above balance sheets should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

24580445
93062

5940514
18.723.993

ft4Lr
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Cash flow statements

For the year ended 30 June 2009

ashflows from operating activities

terest and fees received

Interest paid

Payments to suppliers and employees

Cash flows from Investing activities

Payments for leasehold improvements plant

and equipment

Payments for other assets

Payments for intangible assets

Loans to from controlled entities

Proceeds from disposal of investment held for

sale

Proceeds from sale of property plant and

equipment

Net funds advanced to clients

________ Loans advanced to clients

Loans repaid by clients

Loans purchased from third party

Net cash outflow Inflow from investing

activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Payment of transaction costs

Net cash outflow Inflow from financing

activities

Net Increase decrease In cash and cash

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of

the financial year

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

30 399.235 246.882 492.831 170.860

17720 165999 17720 165999
145850 641507 145850 641.507

301429 221631 301429 221631
382604 1404633

237864 237864

30795753 46885450 30471187 45741882
32915955 27661270 32287372 26808813

1.538.344

4000000 47500000 4000000 47500000

4000000 27500000 4000000 27500000
237.9811 284.819 237.981 284.819

237.981 19.715.181 237.981 19.715.181

1076287 1591734 1061278 1584654

724952 2318752 712857 2297511

170 2.066
1.801.409 724.952 1.774.135 712.857

The above cash flow statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Notes

Income taxes paid

Net cash oufflow inflow from operating

activities

11009437 7492797 10712443

4091970 2332672 4091989
5.067.5961 4.053.243 4.864.199

1849871 1106882 1756275
2.249.1061 860.000 2.249.1061

6964566
2332661
3.942.765

689140

860.000

58300 58300

L._

1.713.503 21.553.797 1.792.090 21.128.975
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Significant accounting policies

The financial report was authorised for issue by the directors on 21 August 2009

Statement of complIance

Ask Funding Umitsd

Notes to the financial statements

30 June 2009

continued

the assets and liabilities of the legal subsidiary are recognised and measured in the consolidated financial

statements at their pro-combination carrying amounts

Ask Funding Limited formerly Impact Capital Limited the Company Is company domiciled in Australia The

consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 30 June 2009 comprIse the Company and

subsidiaries together referred to as the Group and the Groups interest In associates The Company changed its

ame from Impact Capital Limited to Ask Funding Limited on 26 November 2008

The financial report is general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with Australian

Accounting Standards AASBs including Australian Interpretations adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards

Board AASB and the Corporations Act 2001 The consolidated financial report of the Group and the financial report of

the Company comply with International Financial Reporting Standards IFRSs and interpretations adopted by the

International Accounting Standards Board

Reverse acquisition accounting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using reverse acquisition accounting In reverse acquisition

accounting the cost of the business is deemed to have been incurred by the legal subsidiary the acquirer for accounting

purposes in the form of equity instruments issued to the owners of the legal parent the acquiree for accounting

purposes

The consolidated financial statements from July 2005 the date of the reverse acquisition are issued in the name of Ask

Funding Limited formerly Impact Capital Limited as legal parent but represent consolidation of the financial statements

of the legal subsidiary ACN 109 006 126 Pty Ltd formerly Impact Funding Limited and Its controlled entitles as follows

the retained earnings and other equity balances recognised In the consolidated financial statements are the

retained earnings and other equity balances of the legal subsidiary Immediately before the business combination

and

the amount recognised as issued equity instruments are determined by adding to the issued equity of the legal

subsidiary immediately before the business combination the cost of the combination

ii Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars which is the Companys functional currency

and the functional currency of the majority of the group

III Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for available for sale financial

assets assets classified as held for sale other financial assets derivative financial Instruments and share-based

_- payments which are measured at fair value

iv Early adoption of standards and Interpretations

he group has not elected to adopt any accounting standards or amendments to standards or interpretations issued prior

to the date of this report where application is not mandatory for the year ended 30 June 2009

Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with AASBs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates

-- It also requires management to exercise Its judgement in the process of applying the Groups accounting policies The

areas involving higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to

the financial statements are disclosed in note

fl The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised If the revision affects only that period or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods

vi Application

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented In the consolidated financial

statements and have been applied consistently by Group entities
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continued

Accounting for income and expenses from non-derivative financial instruments is discussed at note 1n and 1o

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value plus for instruments not at fair value through profit

and loss any directly attributable transaction costs Subsequent to Initial recognition non-derivative financial instruments

are measured as below

Significant accounting policies continued

Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries

ubsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group Control exists when the Group has the power directly or indirectly toEJ
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from Its activities In assessing control

potential voting rights that presently are exercisable or convertible are taken into account The financial statements of

subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that

control ceases

In the Companys financial statements investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost

ii Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions

are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currencies of Group entities at the respective exchange

rates ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance

sheet date are translated to functional currency at the foreign exchange rate at that date Foreign exchange differences

arising on translation are recognised in the income statement Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in

terms of historical cost in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency using the exchange rate at the date of

________ the transaction Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are

translated to the functional currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined

ii Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition are

translated to Australian dollars at foreign exchange rates ruling at the reporting date The income and expenses of foreign

operations excluding foreign operations in hyperinflationary economies are translated to Australian dollars at rates

approximating the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation

are recognised directly in the foreign currency translation reserve which is separate component of equity When

foreign operation is disposed of in part or in full the relevant amount in the foreign currency translation reserve is

transferred to profit or loss

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary item receivable from or payable to foreign operation the

\.J settlement of which is neither planned nor likely in the foreseeable future are considered to form part of net investment

in foreign operation and are recognised directly in equity in the Translation Reserve

j13 ci Financial Instruments

financial instrument is recognised if the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the Instrument Financial

jassets
are derecognised if the Groups contractual rights to the cashflows from the financial assets expire or If the Group

transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset

egular way purchases and sales are accounted for at trade date le the date that the Group commits Itself to purchase or

sell the asset Financial liabilities are derecognlsed If the Groups obligations specified In the contract expIre or are

discharged or cancelled

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity securities trade and other receivables loans and

advances cash and cash equivalents borrowings and trade and other payables

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and

form an integral part of the Groups cash management are included as component of cash and cash equivalent for the

purpose of the statement of cash flows
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If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity is

recognised immediately in the income statement

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

financial instrument is classified as at fair value through profit or loss If it is acquired principally for the purpose of selling

in the short term or if so designated by management Upon initial recognition the financial instrument is measured at fair

value Subsequent changes therein are recognised in profit or loss Attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit

or loss when incurred

Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial instruments classified as being available-for-sale are stated at fair value with any resultant gain or loss being

recognised directly in equity except for impairment losses When these investments are derecognised the cumulative

gain or loss previously recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss

Loans and advances

Loans and advances are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment losses

II Derivative financial Instruments

The Group hoids derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk exposure Where derivatives quaiify for

______
hedge accounting recognition of any resultant gain or loss Is accounted for as described below

Hedging
On entering into hedging relationship the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship and the risk

management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge

EJ The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument the hedged item or transaction the nature of the risk

being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging instruments effectiveness in off setting the exposure to changes
in the hedged items fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk

Such hedges are expected to be effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on

an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which

they are designated

Cash flow hedges

Changes in the fair value of the derivative hedging instrument designated as cash flow hedge are recognised directly in

equity to the extent that the hedge is effective To the extent that the hedge is ineffective changes In fair value are

recognised in profit or loss

ft
Where derivative financial instrument is designated as hedge of the variability in cash flows of recognised asset or

liability or highly probable forecast transaction the effective part of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument

is recognised directly in equity

When the forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of non-financial asset or non-financial liability or

the forecast transaction for non-financial asset or non-financial liability becomes firm commitment for which fair value

II hedge accounting is applied the associated cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity and included in the initial cost

other carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability
If hedge of forecast transaction subsequently results in

the recognition of financial asset or financial liability the associated gains and losses that were recognised directly in

equity are reclassified into profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the asset acquired or lIability assumed

affects profit or loss

For cash flow hedges other than those described above the associated cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity

and recognised in the income statement in the same period or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction

--- affects profit or loss The ineffective part of any gain or loss is recognised immediately In the income statement

When hedging instrument expires or is sold terminated or exercised or the entity revokes designation of the hedge
L__-J relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to occur the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains

in equity and is recognised in accordance with the above policy when the transaction occurs
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Significant accounting policies continued

Share Capital

Ordinary shares

________ ncremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share options are recognised as deduction

_____
from equity net of any related income tax benefit

ii Dividends

Dividends are recognised as liability in the period in which they are declared

ED Fair value measurement

number of the Groups accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value for financial assets and

liabilities Fair values have been determined for measurement and or disclosure purposes based on the methods as

below

Flnanclai Instruments traded In an active market

The fair value of financial instruments traded In active markets such as publicly traded derivatives and trading and

available-for-sale securities is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date

II Financial Instruments not traded In an active market

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market Is determined using valuation techniques

The Group uses variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each

balance date

ill Other receivables and trade payables

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of other receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate

their fair values The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future

contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments

fr__J Iv Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of employee share options Is measured using the Black-Scholes and Binomial option pricing models

Measurement inputs include the exercise price of the instrument the term of the option the impact of dilution the share

price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share the expected dividend yield and the risk free

interest rate for the term of the option Service and non-market conditions attached to the transactions are not taken into

account in determining fair value

Loans and advances

The fair value of loans and advances is estimated as the present value of future cash flows discounted at the market rate

of interest at the reporting date

vi Derivatives

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated by discounting estimated future cash flows based on the terms and

maturity of each contract and using market interest rates for similar instrument at the measurement date

1b
Amortlsed cost measurement

The amortised cost is the amount at which financial asset or liability
Is measured at initial recognition minus principal

repayments plus or minus the cumulative amortisatlon using the effective interest rate method of any difference between

the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount minus any reduction for impairment

Property plant and equipment

Owned assets

Items of property plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset Purchased software that is integral to

the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from

disposal with the carrying amount of property plant and equipment and are recognised within other IncomeTM in profit or

loss
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Property plant and equipment continued

Subsequent costs

_____ he Group recognises in the carrying amount of an item of property plant and equipment the cost of replacing part of such

_____
an item when that cost is incurred If it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the Item will flow to

.____1 the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably The carrying amount of the replaced part Is derecognised

All other costs are recognised in the income statement as an expense as Incurred

Ill Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an

item of property plant and equipment The range of depreciation rates used for each class of asset in the current and

comparative periods are as follows

Furniture and fittings

Office equipment

The residual value if not insignificant is reassessed annually

IntangIble assets

Goodwill

Goodwill and negative goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries associates and joint ventures Goodwill

represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Groups interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets

liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree When the excess is negative negative goodwill It Is recognised

immediately in profit or loss

Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses In respect of equity accounted investees the

carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment

ii Other Intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group which have finite lives are measured at cost less accumulated

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses

iii Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits

embodied in the specific asset to which it relates All other expenditure induding expenditure on internally generated

goodwill and brands is recognised in profit or loss when incurred

iv Amortisatlon

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of Intangible assets

unless such lives are indefinite Goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are systematically tested for

impairment at each balance sheet date Other intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use

The estimated useful lives in the current and comparative periods are as follows

Computer software 2.5 to years

Assets or disposal groups held for sale

Assets or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities that are expected to be recovered primarily through sale

rather than through continuing use are classified as held for sale

Immediately before classification as held for sale the measurement of the assets is brought up to date in accordance with

applicable accounting standards Then on initial classification as held for sale assets are recognised at the lower of

carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale are included in profit or loss even when there is revaluation

The same applies to gains and losses on subsequent remeasurement

7.5 30%
11 -40%
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ImpaIrment

Financial assets

financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is

_____ impaired financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had

negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset

All impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss Any cumulative loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial

asset previously recognised in equity is transferred to profit or loss

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss

was recognised For financial assets measured at amortised cost and available-forsale financial assets that are debt

securities the reversal is recognised in profit or loss For available-for-sale financial assets that are equity securities the

reversal is recognised directly in equity

II Impairment of Loans and Advances

Impairment losses on loans and advances are determined on case by case basis Each borrower is subjected to

regular and intensive assessment for the identification and quantification of impairment Following this assessment if

there is evidence that loan or advance is impaired then specific impairment is raised The amount of the specific

L_ impairment is based on the carrying amount of the loan or advance including the security held and the present value of

expected future cash flows Any subsequent wnte-offs are then made against the specific provision for unrecoverable

loans

-tMpairment losses other than in respect of goodwill are reversed when there is an indication that the impairment loss has

decreased or no longer exist and if there has been change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill Is not reversed

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount

that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation if no impairment loss had been recognised

Employee benefits

Short-term benefits

Liabilities for employee benefits for wages salaries and annual leave represent present obligations resulting from

employees services provided to reporting date are calculated at undiscounted amounts based on remuneration wage and

salary rates that the Group expects to pay as at reporting date including related on-costs such as workers compensation

insurance and payroll tax Non-accumulating non-monetary benefits are expensed based on the net marginal cost to the

Group as the benefits are taken by the employees

An impairment loss in respect of financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its

carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate

An impairment loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial asset Is calculated by reference to its current fair value

III Non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Groups non-financial assets other than deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting

date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment If such indication exists then the assets recoverable

amount is estimated For goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life recoverable amount is

estimated at each reporting date

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in

use In assessing value in use the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pro-tax

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset For

the purpose of impairment testing assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash

inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets the cash.

generating unit

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount

Impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss Impairment losses recognised In respect of cash-generating units

are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to cash-generating units group of units and

then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit group of units on pro rota basis
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Employee benefits continued

liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the

roup has present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as result of past service provided by the

employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably

III Share-based payments
The fair value of options granted under the Ask Funding Limited Executive Option Scheme Is recognised as an employee
benefit expense with corresponding Increase in equity The fair value is measured at grant date and recognised over the

period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options The amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest except for those that fall to vest due to market conditions

not being met

Iv Profit-sharing and bonus plans

provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the

Group has present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as result of past service provided by the

employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably

II Defined contribution superannuation funds

defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into

separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts Obligations for contributions to

defined contribution superannuation funds are recognised as an expense In the income statement when they are due

Provisions

provision is recognised if as result of past event the Group has present legal or constructive obligation that can be

reliably estimated and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at pre-tax rate that reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and where appropriate the risks specific to the liability

Revenue

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised in the income statement using the effective interest rate method The effective Interest rate

is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the

carrying amount of the financial asset The calculation of the estimated future cash receipts includes ascertainable fees

received and transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset as well as any
discounts or premiums

The effective interest rate is established on initial recognition of the financial asset and is not revised subsequently

II Fee Income

Fee income including account servicing and reassessment fees are recognised as the related services are performed

otwithstanding the fact that company policy is to determine all fees received by reference to reimbursement of actual

Josts for accounting purposes ascertainable fees received are recognised as Interest Income under the effective interest

rate method

_____ III Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the income is established which In the case of quoted securities

is the ex-dividend date

Expenses

ft_____ operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on straight-line basis over the term of

the lease Lease incentives received are recognised in the income statement as an Integral part of the total lease expense
and spread over the lease term

II Interest expense
Interest expense is calculated using the effective interest method Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred and included

in interest expense
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Significant accounting policies continued

Income tax

come tax expense comprises current and deferred tax Income tax is recognised in the income statement except to the

extent that it relates to items recognised directly In equity in which case It is recognised in equity

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates enacted or substantively

enacted at the balance sheet date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method providing for temporary differences between the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes Deferred

tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences initial recognition of goodwill the Initial recognition of assets

or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the

extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are

expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse based on the laws that have been enacted or

substantially enacted at the reporting date Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset If there is legally enforceable

right to offset current tax liabilities and assets and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the

same taxable entity or on different tax entities but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on net basis or

their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously

deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against

iiwhich the temporary difference can be utilised Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced

_J to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised

Tax consolidation

The Company and its wholly owned Australian resident subsidiaries are part of tax-consolidated group As

consequence all members of the tax-consolidated group are taxed as single entity The head entity within the tax

consolidated group is Ask Funding Limited

Current tax expense deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities arising from the temporary differences of the members

of the tax-consolidated group are recognised in the separate financial statements of the members of the tax-consolidated

_____
group using the separate taxpayer within group approach by reference to the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities

in the separate financial statements of each entity and the tax values applying under tax consolidation

Any current tax liabilities or assets and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses of the subsidiaries Is assumed

by the head entity in the tax-consolidated group and are recognised by the company as amounts payable receivable to

from other entities in the tax-consolidated group in conjunction with any tax funding arrangement amounts refer below
Any difference between these amounts is recognised by the Company as an equity contribution or distribution

The Company recognises deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses of the tax-consolidated group to the extent

that it is probable that future taxable profits of the tax-consolidated group will be available against which the asset can be

utilised Any subsequent period adjustments to deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses as result of revised

assessments of the probability of recoverability Is recognised by the head entity only

II Nature of tax funding arrangements and tax sharing arrangements

The head entity in conjunction with other members of the tax-consolidated group has entered into tax funding

L_rrangement which sets out the funding obligations of members of the tax-consolidated group In respect of tax amounts

The tax funding arrangements require payments to from the head entity equal to the current tax liability asset assumed

by the head entity and any tax loss deferred tax asset assumed by the head entity resulting in the head entity recognising

an inter-entity receivable payable equal in amount to the tax liability asset assumed The Inter-entity receivables

payables are at call

Contributions to fund the current tax liabilities are payable as per the tax funding arrangement and reflect the timing of the

head entitys obligation to make payments for tax liabilities to the relevant tax authorities

The head entity in conjunction with other members of the tax-consolIdated group has also entered into tax-sharing

agreement The tax-sharing agreement provides for the determination of the allocation of the income tax lIabilities

L... between the entities should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations No amounts have been recognised In

the financial statements in respect of this agreement as payment of any amounts under the tax sharing agreement Is

considered remote
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Significant accounting policies continued

Goods and services tax

evenue expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax GST except where the

_____ amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority In these circumstances the GST is recognised as

part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included The net amount of GST recoverable from or

payable to the ATO is included as current asset or liability in the balance sheet

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on gross basis The GST components of cash flows arising from

investing and financing activities which are recoverable from or payable to the ATO are dassifled as operating cash

flows

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share EPS data for its ordinary shares Basic EPS is calculated by

dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares outstanding during the period Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary

_____ shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effect of all dilutive potential

ordinary shares which comprises convertible notes and share options granted to employees

Segment reporting

________
segment is distinguishable component of the group that is engaged either in providing products or services business

segment or in providing products or services within particular economic environment geographical segment which Is

subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments The Groups primary format for segment

reporting is based on geographic segments

inter-segment pricing is determined on an arms length basis

Segment results assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to segment as well as those that can be

allocated on reasonable basis The allocations recognise that whilst costs may have been incurred by the Group they

may relate to the operating activities of another geographical segment Unallocated items comprise corporate assets and

expenses

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property plant and equipment and

intangible assets other than goodwill

New accounting standards and interpretations

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2009

reporting periods The Groups and the Companys assessment of the impact of these new standards and interpretations

is set out below

-ff AASB Operating Segments

AASB will be applicable for reporting periods beginning on or after January 2009 AASB requires adoption of

management approach to reporting on financial performance whereby the information being reported will be based on

what the key decision makers use Internally for evaluating segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources

to operating segments The adoption of AASB is likely to result in an Increase in the number of reportable segments

reported in note of the financial report

II Revised AASB 101 PresentatIon of Financial Statements

fl ri
The revised AASB 101 will be applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 2009 and introduces

as financial statement the statement of comprehensive income and makes changes to the statement of changes in

.-
equity but will not affect the recognition measurement or disclosure of transactions and events that are required by other

AASBs If an entity has made prior period adjustment of has reclassified items In the financial statements it will need to

disclose third balance sheet this one being as at the beginning of the comparative period
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The revised AASB 123 will be applicable for reporting periods beginning on or after January 2009 and removes the

option to expense borrowing costs and requires that an entity capitalise borrowing costs directly attributable to the

acquisition construction or production of qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset This revised standard Is not

expected to have any impact on the financial report

iv Revised AASB BusIness Combinations

The revised AASB will be applicable for reporting periods beginning on or after July 2009 and continues to apply the

acquisition method to business combinations but with some significant changes There is choice on an acquisition-by-

acquisition basis to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquires either at fair value of at the non-controlling

interests proportional share of the acquirees net assets All acquisition-related costs must be expensed This revised

standard will be applied prospectively to all business combinations and transactions with non-controlling interests from

July 2009 and hence will not have any impact on the financial report

Amended AASB 127 Consoildated and Separate Financial Statements

The amended MSB 127 will be applicable for reporting periods beginning on or after July 2009 and requires accounting

for changes in ownership interest by the Group in subsidiary while maintaining control to be recognised as an equity

transaction When the Group loses control of subsidiary any interest retained In the former subsidiary will be measured

at fair value with the gain or loss recognised in profit or loss The amendments to AASB 127 are not expected to have

________
significant impact on the consolidated financial report

This amendment will be applicable for reporting periods beginning on or after July 2009 and changes the recognition and

measurement of dividend receipts as income and addresses the accounting of newly formed parent entity in the

_______ parate financial statements These amendments are not expected to have any Impact on the financial report

______ This amendment will be applicable for reporting periods beginning on or after July 2009 and clarifies he effect of using

options as hedging instruments and the circumstances in which inflation risk can be hedged The amendments are not

expected to have any impact on the financial report

Al 16 Hedges of Net investment in Foreign Operation

This amendment will be applicable for reporting periods beginning on or after July 2009 and clarifies that net investment

hedging can only be applied when the net assets of the foreign operation are recognised in the entitys consolidated

financial statements The Group has not yet determined the potential effect of the interpretation

Significant accounting policies continued

New accounting standards and Interpretations continued

JiiRevised AASB 123 Borrowing Costs

II

vi AASB 2008-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standard Share-based Payment Vesting Conditions

and Cancellations

This amendment will be applicable for reporting periods beginning on or after January 2009 and changes the

measurement of share-based payments that contain non-vesting conditions This revised standard is not expected to

have any impact on the financial report

vii AASB 2008-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements

Process and 2008-6 Further Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual

Improvements Process

These amendments will be applicable for reporting periods beginning on or after July 2009 and affect various AASBs

resulting in minor changes for presentation disclosure recognition and measurement purposes These amendments are

not expected to have any impact on the financial report

viii AASB 2008-7 Amendments to Accounting Standards Cost of an investment in Subsidiary Jointiy

Controlled Entity orAssociate

ix AASB 2008-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standard Eligible Hedged Items
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Financial risk management

The Groups activities expose it to variety of financial risks market risk foreign exchange risk and Interest rate 118k

credit risk and liquidity risk

he Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework--The Board has established the risk management committee which is responsible for developing robust structure for the

_____ determination of risk appetite and the monitoring reporting and escalation of risks including both operational and financial

risks The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities

The committee is also responsible for risk management policies which are established to set appropriate risk limits and

controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits The key objective of these policies is to mitigate these risks reduce

volatility on financial performance to ensure sufficient liquidity is maintained at all times to meet the Groups obligations

and execute the Groups operational strategy whilst optimising investment return for shareholders

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Groups

activities

There have been no significant changes in the types of financial risks the Group is exposed to since the prior year

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the

Groups financial position through fluctuations in the fair value or future cashflows of financial Instruments

Foreign exchange risk

The Groups exposure to foreign currency exchange differences is minimal and limited to the investment the parent entity

has in the New Zealand subsidiary In view of this no foreign currency hedging Is undertaken The risk is monitored on

an ongoing basis for change in exposure of foreign currency risk The quantum of the Groups exposure to movement in

foreign exchange translation is not material

ii Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk to earnings from the margin between different yield curves arising from movements in the

absolute levels of interest rates and the volatility of interest rates Cashflow interest rate risk arises from financial

instruments with floating interest rate whereas fair value interest rate risk arises from fixed interest rate financial

instruments

Loans and advances are issued by the Group and Company at fixed Interest rates and are at amortised cost so therefore

do not expose the entity to cash flow interest rate risk or to fair value interest rate risk

The Groups and Companys interest rate risk therefore arises predominantly from the interest bearing financial liabilities

which are issued at variable rate and cash and cash equivalents which are held at variable rate In the current

financial year the Group has adopted policy of ensuring that between 30% and 75% of its exposure to changes In

interest rates on borrowings is on fixed rate basis which Is achieved by entering Into Interest rate swaps In addition

interest rate risk is minimised by the Group adjusting the fixed interest rate charged on new loans and advances to

Lrnaitain
net interest margin Refer to note 17
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Bank balances and deposits

Commercial advance
facility

Interest rate swap notional principal amount

Net exposure to cash flow Interest rate risk

Carrying amount

Consolidated

2009 2008

2506757 1366009

45000000 45000000
25000.000

2009

2479483
45000000
25000.000

Financial risk management continued

Market risk continued

at the reporting date the Group and Company had the following variable rate financial instruments and Interest rate

ap contracts outstanding

Carrying amount

Company
2008

1353914
45000000

17.493.2431 43.633.991 17.520.5171 43.646.086

The table below summarises the impact of an increase of 100 basis points 2008 100 basis points increase or 100 basis

points decrease from year end variable interest rates with all other variables held constant on the Groups and the

Companys post tax profit for the year and on equity calculated on the net interest bearing financial instruments and

interest rate swap contracts held at the reporting date This sensitivity has been selected based on the current level of

both short term and long term Australian dollar interest rates the Groups mix of debt review of historical movements and

expectations of economic forecasters

-I

1%

2008 1%

Impact on pst-tax profit Impact on equity

-0%

20081%
1%

2008 1%
-0%

20081%

Consolidated

30 June 2009

Variable rate instruments

Interest rate swap

Cash flow sensitivity net

30 June 2008

Variable rate instruments

Interest rate swap

Cash flow sensitivity net

Company
30 June2009

Variable rate instruments

Interest rate swap

Cash flow sensitivity net

30 June 2008

Variable rate instruments

Interest rate swap

Cash flow sensitivity net

122644

122.6441

305500

305.500

122644

122.644

305500

305.500

305500

305.500

305500

305.500

114.975

114.975

114975
114.9751
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Financial risk management continued

Credit risk

redit risk is the risk of financial loss if debtor or other counterparty to financial instrument fails to meet its contractual

i__i obligations

The Group and Companys credit risk arises predominately from loans and advances This credit risk is minimised by the

Groups lending model under which monies are advanced against the anticipation of specified future event with the loan

risks and credit assessment fundamentally related to the outcome of that specified event and with repayment sourced from

the resultant agreed or judicially determined settlement outcome and proceeds As further mitigant to credit risk the

principal amount advanced is limited to maximum of 30% of the lower range of the expected settlement outcome which

is calculated through known formula and methodology utilised within the judicial system

Therefore unlike the majority of consumer lending the personal injury and disbursement funding products are far less

reliant on the financial position of the borrower for repayment and are less effected by consumer sentiment market or

economic conditions

The matrimonial and inheritance funding products however are subject to market and economic conditions as the

settlement outcome of the underlying matters are linked to existing assets such as property shares and businesses and

therefore in order to repay the loan or advance these assets must either be sold or refinanced In the current market the

reduction in asset values and the tighter refinancing criteria applied by traditional financiers has led to an increased credit

risk on these particular loans and advances In response to this credit risk the Group has restricted the extent of lending

in these products and requires increased levels of security to be provided

The Group and the Company has limited credit risk exposure concentrated to single borrower or legal practice In_j respect of loans and advances and other receivables the following mitigants are in place

Single borrower registered mortgage or charge over assets

ç\v Legal practice personal guarantees of partners of the practice

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of financial assets net of any provisions

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due because of the lack

of liquid assets or access to adequate capital and debt facilities on acceptable terms The Groups approach to managing

liquidity is to ensure as far as possible that it will have sufficient funds available on timely basIs to meet its liabilities

when due under both normal and stressed conditions without incuning unacceptable losses or risking damage to the

Groups reputation where such funds include liquid assets undrawn committed funded facilities borrowing capacity and

defined surplus of cash To manage this risk management continuously monitors forecast and actual cash flows

/1 Financing arrangementsjL single financier provided all of the Groups borrowing facilities as at 30 June 2009 and 30 June 2008

The Group and the Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the reporting date

Consolidated Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Floating rate

Expiring beyond one year Commercial advance

facility 10.318.638 5.356.419 10.318.638 5.356.419

10.318.638 5.356.419 10.318.638 5.356.419

The commercial advance facility may be drawn at any time up until 4th September 2010 and is subject to an annual

______ review

In addition to the undrawn borrowing facilities the Group maintains cash deposits as detailed in notes and 15
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Liquidity risk continued

aturities of financial liabilities

efinancing risk subset of liquidity risk is the risk that the maturity profile of the Group and Companys financial

_____
liabilities makes it difficult to refinance or rollover maturing debt in that it creates an excessive exposure to potentially

çIcii

unfavourabie market conditions at any given time

The liquidity risk inherent in these cash flows is mitigated by the maturity profile of the Groups financial assets principally

loans and advances which are of short-term nature and hence the funds required to meet the Groups financial

obligations are expected to be received well in advance of the contractual maturity dates of the financial liabilities In

further managing liquidity risk the refinancing of the Groups debt facilities is undertaken well in advance of the maturity

date of that financial liability

Ask Funding Limited continues to prove the current business model Despite the global financial crisis the Group has

improved its profitability and this has further verified the business model which is supported by the Groups current

financiers Therefore Ask Funding Limited has no reason to believe that the Groups debt facility
will not be renewed

Less than -12 Between Between Ne term Total

months months and years and years contractual

cash flows

Carrying

Amount

ass.tsl
liabilities

Non-derivative financial

liabilities

Trade and other payables 761068 761068 761068

Commercial advance
facility 1248221 1400383 45595952 48244556 44890630

Derivative financial liabilities

Interest rate swaps used for

hedging net settled 5A35 5373 25 17645 17f145

Total financial liabilities 2.044.924 1.405.756 45.572.593 49.023273 45.669.347

Group At 30 June 2008
Less than 12 months Between Between No Term Total Carrying

months and years and years contractual Amount

cash flows assets
liabilities

Non-derivative financial

2JMbiiitles

Trade and other payables 673571 673571 673571

Commercial advance facility 3013243 2292126 4620573 45849445 55775387 45455757

Derivative financial liabilities

Interest rate swaps used for

hedging net settled

Total financial liabilities 3.686.814 2.292.126 4.620.573 45.849.445 56.448.958 46.129.328

The tables below analyse the Groups and the Companys financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the

remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date The amounts disclosed in the table are the

contractual undiscounted cash flows

Group At 30 June 2009
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Financial risk management continued

Liquidity risk continued

Total

contractual

cash flows

Non-derivative financial

liabilities

Trade and other payabies

Loans from controlled entities

Commerciai advance facility

Derivative financial liabilities

interest rate swaps used for

hedging net settled

Total financial liabilities _________ _________ _________ _________ _________ _________ _________

-.ompany At 30 June 2009
Less than

months

6.12

months

Between Between

and years and years

No term Canylng

Amount

ass.ts
liabilities

735152

1248221

35R35

2.019.008

1400383

5.373

1.405.756

45595952

23.359

45.572.593

6804614

735152

6804614
48244556

735152

6804614

44890630

17.840 17640

6.804.614 55.801.971 52.448.045

Company At 30 June 2008
Less than 6- 12 months Between Between No term Total Carrying

months and years and years contractual Amount

cash flows assets/
liabilities

Non-derivative financial

liabilities

Trade and other payablos 659829 659829 659829
Loans from controlled entities 5149388 5149388 5149388
Commercial advance facility 3013243 2.292126 4620573 45849445 55775.387 45455757

Derivative financial liabilities

Interest rate swaps used for

hedging net settled

Total financial liabilities 3.673.072 2292.126 4.620.573 45.849.445 5.149.388 61.584.604 51.264.974

t9
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Critical accounting estimates and Judgements

Esti mates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors including

expectations of future events that may have financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under

circumstances

________ Management discussed with the Audit Committee the development selection and disclosure of the Groups critical

accounting policies and estimates and the application of these policies and estimates The estimates and judgements that

have significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below

Impairment of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful IWes

The Group assesses whether goodwill and intangibles with Indefinite useful lives are impaired at least annually in

accordance with the accounting policy in note These calculations involve an estimation of the recoverable amount of

the cash-generating units to which the goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are allocated Refer to note 14

for details of these assumptions and the potential impact of changes to the assumptions

Impairment of loans and advances and other receivables

The Group continually assesses whether individual loans and advances and other receivables are impaired in accordance

with the accounting policy in note Provisions for impairment are raised where there is objective evidence of Impairment

and full recovery is considered doubtful These calculations may involve an estimate of the litigation risk the settlement

proceeds and underlying asset values in order to determine the estimate of the recoverable amount of the particular loan

or advance The Groups credit risk exposure is detailed in note 2b

LJL

Valuation of share-based payments
The fair value of options granted under the Ask Funding Limited Executive Option Scheme have been measured using the

Black-Scholes and Binomial option pricing models These models require the estimation of certain inputs including the

expected price volatility of the underlying share and the expected dividend yield
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Segment reporting

Segment information is presented only in respect of the Groups geographical segments as it operates wholly within the

t...usiness
segment of consumer finance This format is based on the groups management and internal reporting structure

presenting information on the basis of geographical segments segment revenue is based on the geographical location

of customers Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets

Geographical segments

United

2009 Australasla Kingdom Consolidated

External interest income 14489814 14489814
External interest expense 3764177 3764177
Fee income 1.745.022 1.745.022

Net interest and fee income 12.470.659 12.470.659

Segment result 5205.232 5205232
Unallocated revenue less unallocated expenses 211.418
Profit before income tax 4993814
Income tax expense 1.449128

Net profit for the year 3.544.686

Segment assets 70.425701 70425701

______
Unallocated assets 923.159--Total assets 71.348.860

Segment liabilities 45.910.712 45910712
Unallocated liabilities 827.936

Total liabilities 46.738.648

Acquisitions of property plant and equipment intangibles and other

segment assets 319.150 319.150

Depreciation and amortisation expense 102.933 102.933

S.--
Impairment losses 2.152.462 2.152.462

Cash flow infermatlon

t- Net cash flows from operating activities 399.235 399.235

Net cash flows from investing activities 1.713.503 1.713.503

H1 Net cash flows from financing activities 237.981 237.981
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United

Australasia Kingdom Consolidated2008

JL

External interest income 11369572 11369572
External interest expense 3391130 3391130
Fee income 982.481 982.461

Net interest and fee income 8.960.903 8.960.903

Segment result 4157.273 9.444 4147829
Unallocated revenue less unallocated expenses 1.005.215

Profit before income tax 3142814

Income tax expense 1.215.473

Net profit for the period 1.927.141

Segment assets 68152.685 68152685
Unallocated assets 622.957

Total assets 68.775.642

Segment liabilities 46.468.358 46468358
Unallocated liabilities 1.333.116

Total liabilities 47.801.474

Acquisitions of property plant and equipment intangibles and other segment

assets 387.630 387.630

Depreciation and amortisation expense 121.522 121.522

Impairment losses 300.249 300.249

Cash flow Infermatlon

Net cash flows from operating activities 246.882 246.882

Net cash flows from investing activities 21.791 .661 237864 21.553.797

Net cash flows from financing activities 19.715.161 19.715.181

On 18 March 2008 the investment in Impact Holding UK Plc was sold The Group no longer has any interest in the United Kingdom as

the investment in Impact Holdings UK Plc represented the only operations in the United Kingdom

Business Segments

The Group operates primarily in the consumer finance market
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Net loss on sale of Impact Holdings UK Plc investment

held for sale

Net loss on sale of Impact Holdings UK Plc shares

and options note 11
Administration service income

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

233107 233107

574710 574710
306.639 80.026

807.817 306.639 727.791

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

EE

Remuneration of auditors

Audit services

Auditors of the Company

KPMG Australia

Audit and review of financial reports

Overseas KPMG Firms

f7---- Audit and review of financial reports

Total remuneration for audit services

_\ç Other services

Auditors of the Company
KPMG Australia

Compliance assurance services

Taxation compliance services

Corporate advisory servicesLT Overseas KPMG Firms

Taxation services

Other advisory services

Total remuneration for non-audit services

ic

117075

1.615

118.690

22000

16048

1826

3754
10.982

54.610

108887

2.013

110.900

22000

8635
197036

2844

230.51

113500

113.500

22000

17874

39.874

103938

103.938

22000

8635
197036

227.671
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Income tax expense

Consolidated

2009 2008

The Company
2009 2008

Current tax

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods

Deferred tax

1760921

16886
294.907

1.449.128

1335077
36180

155.784

1.215.473

1219632
16803

294.697

908.132

1269066
36159

198.099

1.107.126

Numerical reconciliation between Income tax

expense and pro-tax net profit

Profit loss before tax 4.993.814 3.142.614 3.035.464 2.778.030

40.610
1492684

942784 910639

4982
2833

27919

242345

10.150 ___________
1210713

898
5.658 ___________

1.215.473 ___________

833409

4824
2833

27919

242345

10.150
1101180

5.946

1.107.126

1498144

4660

30490

Difference in overseas tax rates

Under over provided in prior years

income tax expense

Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% 2008 30%
Tax effect of amounts which are not

deductibieassessabie in calculating taxable income

Non-deductible expenses
Non-deductible change in fair value---
Share-based payments

Non-deductible capital losses on sale of 1HUK

investment

Non-assessable interest income

11i

Tax losses

Amounts recognised directly in equity

Aggregate deferred tax arising in the reporting period

and not recognised in net profit or loss but directly

credited to equity

Deferred tax credited directly to equity

4443

30490

____________ ____________ 40.610 ___________
904962

43.556 ___________ 3.170 ___________
1.449.128 ___________ 908.132 ___________

5.295 5295
5.295 5.295

2.990.703 2.990.703 2.990.703 2.990.703

897.211 897.211 897.211 897.211

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has

L_J been recognised

Potential tax benefit cŁ 30% ___________ ___________ ___________ ___________

fl All unused tax losses are capital losses resulting from the sale of the available for sale investment and the shares and

options held in impact Holdings UK Plc As neither the Company nor the Group currently have source of future capitai

gains of this quantum no deferred tax asset has been recognised
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Earnings per share

Consolidated

2009 2008

Cents Cents

Basic earnings per share

_____ Profit for the period
5.4 3.0

Profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company .............._........A
3.0

Diluted earnings per share

Profit from continuing operations 5.4 3.0

Profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company .........._J4

Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

_____ Consolidated

2009 2008

Basic earnings per share

Profit for the period 3.544.686 1.927.141

Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Consolidated

2009 2008

Number Number

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the denominator in calculating

basic earnings per share 65153118 65153118

Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share

Options

Weighted average number of ordinary shares and potential ordinary shares used as the

denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share 65.153.118 65.153.118

Options

Lj Options granted to executives under the Ask Funding Limited Executive Option Scheme are not included in the calculation of diluted

earnings per share due to the exercise price of the options exceeding the average market value of Ask Funding Limfteds ordinary shares

for the period that the options were outstanding These options are not dilutive as at 30 June 2009 however these options could

Lpotentiaily dilute basic earnings per share in the future Details relating to the options are set out in note 29

Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

I1
Cash at bank 1.801.409 724.952 1.774.135 712.857

Fair value

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents equals fair value
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Cash and cash equivalents continued

Risk exposure

maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents

The Groups and the Companys exposure to interest rate risk is discussed in note

10 Net loans and advances

ED ConsolIdated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Net loans and advances

Pro-settlement 39995708 44409444 38275624 42209086
Outlay Funding 11169425 9485154 11169425 9485154
Other 64604 77698 64604 77698

Capitalised interest 15674032 10546028 14869569 9969612
Provision for impairment 1.992.123 433.824 1.935.545 400.199
Total other assets 64.911.646 64.084.500 62.443.677 61.341.351

These financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and are measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method

Apart from loans and advances specifically identified as impaired assets Ask Funding Limited believes that no collective

impairment allowance is necessary in respect of the balance of loans and advances This is based upon historic default

rates the loan profiles repayment sources and the continual review process undertaken on all outstanding loans

Past due but not impaired

Loans and advances do not have specified repayment date as the loans and advances become technically repayable

within 14 days of settlement of the clients underlying specified event The 14 day time period is derived from literal

reading of the loan documentation utilised by the Group

With reference to this repayment trigger at 30 June 2009 loans and advances of $6073029 2008 $2653954 for the

j__j Group and $6027084 2008 $2653954 for the Company have been classified as past due but not impaired That is

the loans and advances are due for repayment as the underlying specified event has settled but for which repayment has

been delayed by either liquidation of real property now held by the borrower transfer of legal title of assets to the borrower

pursuant to Court Order or as agreed between the parties or receipt of claim proceeds from the insurance company or

statutory body

.._IIIiLihese loans and advances are not considered impaired as the value of the underlying assets including real property or

the amount of the settled claim exceeds the amount due to the Group and the Company and both the borrower and

relevant legal counsel have acknowledged that the debt in its entirety is due and payable

The significant increase in the quantum of past due loans from the prior year is due to additional time being required by the

borrower to repay the loan or advance as result of the slowdown in the property market and the tightening of the

availability of credit for refinancing of property settlements
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10 Net loans and advances continued

The ageing analysis of these loans and advances is as follows

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Past due 0-45 days 350374 873386 350374 873386

Ti Past due 46-90 days 45830 511210 45830 511210

Past due 91-150 days 799487 69341 799487 69341

More than 150 days
4.877.338 1200i17 4.831i93 2fl1017

6.073.029 2.653.954 6.027.084 2.653.954

Impaired loans and advances

All loans and advances whether or not due for repayment are subject to continuous management review and an

impairment loss is recognised as soon as there is objective evidence that particular loan or advance is impaired and that

reasonable doubt exists over the collectability of principal or interest and fees in accordance with the loan agreement

As at 30 June 2009 loans and advances of $4044004 2008 $689461 for the Group and $3827694 2008 $643453
for the Company were considered to be impaired either in full or in part The amount of the provision raised in relation to

these impaired assets was $1992123 2008 $433824 for the Group and $1935545 2008 $400199 for the Company

The Group maintains conservative and prudent approach to provisioning The significant increase in provisioning during

the financial year despite strict adherence to the Groups credit policies is result of the deterioration in market-iconditions which has led to the significant drop in asset values corresponding increase in bankruptcies and spike in the

unemployment rate

The ageing of these loans and advances is as follows

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Not past due 828802 326503 727491 315907

Past due 0-45 days 76691 60862

Past due 46-90 days 494436 494210

Past due 91-150 days 263749 45008 200125 45008

r-iMore than 150 days
2.380i28 17 950 2.343.006 282538

4.044.004 689.461 3.827.694 643.453

interest forgone on impaired assets 519.508 37.200 494.446 26.896

_5 Interest taken to profit on impaired assets 216.129 117.928 180.155 116.587

Provision for impairment

The movement in the provision for impairment in respect of loans and advances during the year is as follows

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Opening balance 433824 609793 400199 481021LJ
Charge to operating profit 2152462 300249 1925296 350519

Write-offs 594163 542683 389950 431341
Provision relating to acquired net loan portfolio 66.485

Closing balance 1.992.123 433.824 1.935.545 400.199
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10 Net loans and advances continued

Fair valuehefair value of net loans and advances as at 30 June 2009 was $68843817 2008 $64575952 The fair value

calculation is based on cash flows discounted using an average current lending rateLJJ
Risk exposure

Information about the Groups and the Companys exposure to credit risk and interest rate risk is provided in note

Security

The Group and the Company has the following collateral over loans and advances including past due and impaired loans

Caveats placed on property with right to take mortgage granted by the borrower on the majority of family law

funding inheritance funding and property marketing finance loans and advances

Mortgages both registered and unregistered over property on number of family law funding loans and advances

Guarantees from law firms and each of its constituent partners in personal capacity that indemnifies Ask Funding

Limited for full repayment of principal and capitalised interest on outlay funding loans

Personal injury advances are made primarily on an unsecured non-recourse basis However the repayment of

these loans is effected via an irrevocable Instruction from the borrower to his/her lawyers trust account No funds

are advanced unless the Irrevocable Instruction is acknowledged by the borrowers lawyer

11 Other financial assets

Consolidated The company
2009 2008 2009 2008

ciff Investments in controlled entities at cost note 25 4.883.321 4.883.321

4.883.321 4.883.321

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Movement in investmentstJ At beginning of period 1601157 4883321 6484478
Disposals 1591713 1591713
Change in fair value of options 9.444 9.444
At end of year 4.883.321 4.883.321

5a Disposal of investment in impact Holdings UK Plc

--------ón 18 March 2008 the shares and options in impact Holdings UK Plc were sold for $1256000 by way of an

unconditional contract with settlement deferred until 31 December 2009 The sale consideration was recognised at its

present value of $1019156 resulting in loss on sale of $574710 after transaction costs Refer notes and 12

Risk exposure

The maximum exposure to market risk at the reporting date is the fair value of the investments

For an analysis of the sensitivity of other financial assets to currency and price risk refer to note
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12 Trade and other receivables

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Other receivables 1188326 1055490 1188326 1055490
Controlled entities 1.696.696 1.728.780

1.188.326 1.055.490 2.885.022 2.784.270

Included within other receivables is an amount of $1188326 2008 $1052990 representing the present value of

deferred consideration for the sale of the shares and options of Impact Holdings UK Plc Settlement of this receivable is

due on 31 December 2009 The Group holds registered fixed and floating charge over the assets and undertakings of

the purchaser

These financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and are measured at amortised cost

Further information relating to loans to related parties is set out in note 24

Past due and impaired

Trade and other receivables are not impaired or past due It is expected that these balances will be received when due

Fair value

Due to their nature the carrying amount of these receivables approximates their fair value

Risk exposure

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of each class of receivable mentioned

above The fair value of securities held over the deferred settlement receivable is $1812723 2008 $3060000

iYi5
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13 Deferred tax assets

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

ri
The balance comprises temporary differences

attributable to

Net loans and advances 742410 352174 729738 341967

Accrued expenses 43054 60446 40069 57645

Employee benefits 50545 39030 50126 39030

Amortisable expenditure 39959 36463 39959 32945

Intangible assets 12420 12420

Property plant and equipment 15685 3085 15685 3193
Tax losses 662

892.315 503.618 875.577 487.200

Amounts recognised directly in equity

Share issue expenses 59978 119955 59978 119955

Cash flow hedges 5295 5295
Provision for warranties and legal costs

Sub-total other 65.273 119.955 65.273 119.955

Total deferred tax assets 957.588 623.573 940.850 607.155

\\V Set-off of deferred tax liabilities note 22 34.429k 616 34.319 616
Net deferred tax assets 923.159 622.957 906.531 606.539

_j
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14 Intangible assets

Computer

Consolidated Goodwill software Total

_____
At July 2007

__J Cost 954370 113141 1067511

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
73.116 73.116

Net book amount 954.370 40.025 994.395

Year ended 30 June 2008

Opening net book amount 954370 40025 994395

Exchange differences 91 91
Additions 225550 225550

Amortisation charge
73.361 73.361

Closing net book amount 954.370 192.123 1.146.493

At 30 June 2008

Cost 954370 281892 1236262

Accumulated amortisation and impairment 89.769 89.769

Net book amount 954.370 192.123 1.146.493

Year ended 30 June 2009

Opening net book amount 954370 192123 1146493

Exchange differences 17 17

Additions 474922 474922

Amortisation charge 34354 34.354

Closing net book amount 954.370 632.708 1.587.078

At 30 June 2009

Cost 954370 746829 1701199

Accumulated amortisation and impairment 114.121 114.121

Net book amount 954.370 632 .708 1.587.078

Computer

The Company software

At July 2007

Cost 102064

Accumulated amortisation and impairment 61.553

LtJ Net book amount 40.511

Year ended 30 June 2008

Opening net book amount 40511

Additions 225550

Amortisation charge 73.006

Closing net book amount 193.055

At 30 June 2008

_2J Cost 270950

Accumulated amortisation and impairment 77.895

Net book amount 193.055
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14 Intangible assets continued

Computer

The Company continued software

Year ended 30 June 2009

Opening net book amount 193055

Additions 474921

Amortisation charge 35.268

Closing net book amount 632.708

At 30 June 2009

Cost 745871

Accumulated amortisation and impairment 113.163

Net book amount 632.708

The amortisation charge is recognised in depreciation and amortisation expense in the income statement

Impairment tests for cash generating units containing goodwill

The following units have significant carrying amounts of goodwill

--1 Consolidated Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Australasia 54j7fl 954 7Q

The recoverable amount of the Australasian cash-generating unit is based on value-in-use calculations Those

calculations use cash flow projections based on actual operating results and the budget for the financial years ended 30

June 2010 2011 and 2012 Cash flows for further two year period are extrapolated using per cent growth rate No
amount has been included in respect of terminal value for the business This growth rate is conservative estimate

given the relative immaturity of the consolidated entity in its current form and is less than the average year projected

growth rates currently utilised by the finance industry within which the group operates pre-tax discount rate of 17.8 perrj cant 2008 13.4 per cent has been used in discounting the projected cash flows

Management have determined assumptions on income growth gross interest margin overhead costs accessibility to and

JLJ utilisation levels of debt funding based on current performance and expectations for the future

The impairment testing highlights significant buffer between the value-in-use and the net book value of the assets of the

cash generating unit and therefore management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions

would not cause the carrying amount of the cash generating unit to exceed its recoverable amount

1L
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15 Other assets

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Deposits 6257 6257 6257 6257

Prepayments 78308 305340 69349 301342

Bank deposits 705.348 641.057 705.348 641.057

789.913 952.654 780.954 948.656

The bank deposits were for restricted use under the terms of the Commercial Advance Facility agreement Therefore

these deposits were not considered to be an integral part of the consolidated cash management and were excluded from

cash or cash equivalents for the purposes of the statement of cash flows

These financial assets are measured at amortised cost

Fair value

The fair value of other assets is equal to their carrying value

Risk exposure

The maximumexposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of other assets

16 Trade and other payables

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Payables and accrued expenses 761068 673571 735152 659829

Loans from controlled entities 6.804.614 5.149.388

761 .068 673.571 7.539.766 5.809.217

J75 These financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost

Fair value

r\ The fair value of trade and other payables is equal to their carrying value

Risk exposure

Information about the Groups and the Companys exposure to liquidity risk is provided in note

17 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Secured

Commercial advance facility 45000000 45000000 45000000 45000000
Transaction costs 250393 229736 250393 229736
Accrued interest 141.023 685.493 141.023 685.493

Total interest bearing liabilities 44.890.630 45.455.757 44.890.630 45.455.757
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17 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings continued

These financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost

The following information is provided in respect of the contractual terms of the Companys and Groups interest bearing

loans and borrowings

Financing arrangements

Consolidated The Company-a
2009 2008 2009 2008

Total facilities

Bank overdraft and guarantee facility 500000 500000 500000 500000

Commercial advance facility 55.000.000 50.000.000 55.000.000 50.000.000

55.500.000 50.500.000 55.500.000 50.500.000

Used at balance date

Bank overdraft and guarantee facility 181362 143581 181362 143581

Commercial advance facility 45.000.000 45.000.000 45.000.000 45.000.000

45.181.362 45.143.581 45.181.362 45.143.581

Unused at balance date

_______ Bank overdraft and guarantee facility 318638 356419 318638 356419L_J
Commercial advance

facility
10.000.000 5.000.000 10.000.000 5.000.000

10.318.638 5.356.419 10.318.638 5.356.419

Total facilities 55500000 50500000 55500000 50500000
Used at balance date 45.181.362 45.143.581 45.181.362 45.143.581

Unused at balance date 10.318.638 5.356.419 10.318.638 5.356.419

The bank overdraft guarantee and commercial advance facility
is available until 4th September 2010 is subject to annual

review and is secured by fixed and floating charge over all of the assets of the Company and Its wholly owned

subsidiaries

Interest rates are variable based on the BBSW Australian Bank Bill Swap Rate plus margin and are fixed at the date of

each advance

Facility agreements

During the current and prior years there were no defaults or breaches on any agreements with financiers

Fair value

The fair value of interest bearing loans and borrowings approximates their carrying value

Risk exposure

Information about the Groups and Companys exposure to interest rate and liquidity risk is provided in note
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18 Derivative financial instruments

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Liabilities

interest rate swaps fair value hedges 17.649 17.649

instruments used by the Group

The Group is party to derivative financial instruments in the normal course of business in order to hedge exposure to

fluctuations in interest rates in accordance with the Groups financial risk management policies refer to note

Fair value

The fair value of the derivative financial instruments is equal to their carrying value

Risk exposure

information about the Groups and Companys exposure to interest rate and liquidity risk is provided in note

19 Income tax payable

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

income tax 27.936 .33.1 16 827.936 1.333.034

The current tax liability for the Group represents the amount of income taxes payable in respect of current financial

periods In accordance with the tax consolidation legislation the Company as the head entity of the Australian tax

consolidated group has assumed the current tax liability initially recognised by the members in the tax consolidated group

Franking credits

t__ Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

JL
Franking credits available for subsequent financial

years based on tax rate of 30% 2008 30% 4.306.350 2.562.341 4.306.350 2.562.341

The above amounts represent the balance of the franking account as at the end of the financial year adjusted for franking

credits that will arise from the payment of the amount of the provision for income tax

The consolidated amounts include franking credits that would be available to the Company if distributable profits of

subsidiaries were paid as dividends

The impact of the dividends franking amount of dividends proposed after the balance sheet date but not recognised as

liability is to reduce it by $363000
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20 Employee benefits

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Liability for annual leave 162956 130099 161726 130099

Salary and wages accrued 78.409 208.931 75.365 208.931

241 .365 339.030 237.091 339.030

The Group makes contributions to various defined contribution superannuation funds The amount recognised as an

\_J expense was $196893 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009 2008 $181422

21 Capital and reserves

The Company
2009 2008

Shares Shares

Share capital

Ordinary shares on issue at 30 June 65.153.118 65.153.118

Ordinary shares

iv Effective July 1998 the Company Law Review Act abolished the concept of par value shares and the concept of

authorised capital Accordingly the Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its issued

shares

IIi The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote

per share at meetings of the Company

Executive option scheme

c-..
information relating to the Ask Funding Limited Executive Option Scheme including details of options issued dunng the

financial year and options outstanding at the end of the financial year is set out in note 29

cJ
Capital risk management

The Groups objective when managing capital is to ensure that its creditors and shareholders are sufficiently protected

against unexpected losses to level consistent with the Groups risk appetite

-2 The capital of the Group consists of equity comprising issued capital reserves and retained earnings and total debt

facilities as detailed in note 17

The directors have set ratio of between 65% and 75% as the maximum level of debt to equity until such time as the

Group is believed to have reached maturity This maximum is considered sustainable given the relative liquidity of the

Groups assets and appropriate given the high level of collateral provided by the underlying security against those assets

1JTJ In addition to managing the level of capital adequacy the Group will also attempt to optimise the mix of capital resources

by minimising the cost of capital and maximising shareholder returns In this regard the minimum level of debt to equity is

to be gearing ratio of 55%
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21 Capital and reserves continued

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

-j Total borrowings 44890630 45455757 44890630 45455757
Less cash and cash equivalents 1.801.409 724.952 1.774.125 712.857

Net debt 43089221 44730805 43116495 44742900

Total equity 24810212 20.974.168 20.640.605 18.72 993

Total capital 67.699433 65.704.973 64.057.100 63.468.893

Gearing ratio 64 68 67 70

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements

Reserves

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements

of foreign operations where their functional currency is different to the presentation currency of the reporting entity

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging

instruments related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred

\j Share based payments reserve

The share based payments reserve is used to record the value of share based payments provided to executives under the

.-----
Executive Option Scheme as part of their remuneration Refer to note 29 for further details of this plan

Dividends

No dividends have been declared or paid during the financial year 2008 Nil

After 30 June 2009 the directors have recommended the payment of final dividend of 1.3 cents per fully paid ordinary

share 2008 Nil fully franked based on tax paid at 30% The aggregate amount of the proposed dividend expected to be

paid on 19 November 2009 out of profits for the year ended 30 June 2009 but not recognised as liability
at year end is

t. $846991 2008 Nil The financial effect of this dividend will be recognised in subsequent financial reports

22 Deferred tax liabilities

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

The balance comprises temporary differences

i.j attributable to

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Intangible assets 33064 33054--
Other items 1.375 616 1.265 616

34.429 616 34.319 616

Li.i
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities note 13 34.429 616 34.319 616
Net deferred tax liabilities
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23 Key management personnel disclosures

Key management personnel

The following were key management personnel of the Group at any time during the financial year and unless otherwise

indicated were key management personnel for the entire year

1j Non-executive directors

Rich Chairperson

Laurie

Litzow

II Executive directors

Templeton Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hill Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary appointed alternate Director for Templeton on 26 June 2009

III Executives

Gebauers General Manager Compliance and Special Projects

Lyle General Counsel

Key management personnel compensation

The key management personnel compensation included in employee benefits expensew in the Income Statements are as

follows

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Short-term employee benefits 1254917 1196173 1254917 1196173
Post-employment benefits 104903 96606 104903 96606

Share-based payments 101.633 93.062 101.633 93.062

1.461.453 1.385.841 1.461.453 1.385.841

The Group has taken advantage of the relief provided by Corporations Regulation 2M.3.03 and has transferred the

detailed remuneration disclosures to the directors report The relevant information can be found in the remuneration

report
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Equity instrument disclosures relating to key management personnel

Options provided as remuneration

Details of options provided as remuneration together with the terms and conditions of the options can be found in the

remuneration report section of the directors report

ii Option holdings
r- The Ask Funding Limited Executive Option Scheme was established during the financial year ended 30 June 2008

The movement during the reporting period in the number of options over ordinary shares in Ask Funding Limited held

directly indirectly or beneficially by each key management person is as follows

2009

Balance at Granted as Balance at

start of the compen- end of the

Name year sation year Vested Unvested

Directors

Templeton 1110000 1110000 370000 740000

Hill 150000 150000 50000 100000

Other key management personnel of the Group

Gebauers 120000 120000 40000 80000

Lyle 150000 150000 50000 100000

All vested options are not exercisable at the end of the year due to the qualifying company share price hurdle not being

reached for exercising of the options Refer to note 29 for further details

2008

Balance at Granted as Balance at

start of the compen- end of the

Name year sation year Vested Unvested

DIrectors

Templeton 1110000 1110000 1110000
Hill 150000 150000 150000

_____ Other key management personnel of the Group

Gebauers 120000 120000 120000

Lyle 150000 150000 150000

DI1
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iii Share holdings

The numbers of ordinary shares in the Company held by each director of Ask Funding Limited and other key management

personnel including their personally-related entities are set out below

2009

Balance at the

start of the Purchases Other Balance at the

Name year Sales changes end of the year

Directors

Rich 100000 100000

Templeton 1944270 1944270
Litzow 2480000 2480000
Laurie 75000 10000 85000

Hill 162607 162607

Other key management personnel of the Group

Gebauers 602000 602000

Lyle 3.077109 456730 3533839

2008

Balance at the

start of the Purchases Other Balance at the

Name year Sales changes end of the yeai

Directors

Rich 100000 100000

Templeton 1912235 32035 1944270
Litzow 2550000 70000 2480000
Laurie 50000 25000 75000

Hill 91700 70907 162607

Other key management personnel of the Group

Gebauers 602000 602000

Lyle 218109 2859.000 3.077109

No shares were granted to key management personnel as compensation during the financial year or the previous financial

year

No shares were issued on the exercise of options during the financial year or the previous financial year

Other transactions with key management personnel

On July 2008 Ask Funding Limited assigned loan and advance facilities jointly to Jalpont Pty Ltd company controlled

by Mr Templeton and Mr Litzow and Mrs Litzow The assignment consideration was $700000 which represented

the carrying value at the date of assignment The Assignment Deed had no recourse to Ask Funding Limited in the event

of default however Ask Funding Limited had been granted call option to repurchase the assigned interest in the loan

facility for fair value On 25 June 2009 Ask Funding Limited exercised this call option and repurchased the assigned loans

and advances for $858045 being the fair value of the principal together with accrued interest and fees due pursuant to

the underlying loan facility The fair value and the credit quality of the assigned loan and advance facility was verified by

the independent directors prior to the repurchase

There were no other transactions with key management personnel or their related parties during the current or previous

financial year

There were no amounts receivable from and payable to key management personnel or their related entities at 30 June

2009 2008 nil
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24 Other related party transactions

Parent entitles

The ultimate parent entity within the Group is Ask Funding Limited formerly Impact Capital Limited Ask Funding Limited
has related party relationship with its subsidiaries and associates

Subsidiaries

Interest-free loans are made by certain wholly-owned subsidiaries to the Company These loans are repayable on
demand At 30 June 2009 the amount owing by the Company totalled $6804614 2008 $5149388

An interest-free loan has been made by the Company to Ask Funding NZ Limited This loan is denominated in Australian
dollars and is repayable on demand At 30 June 2009 the amount owing to the Company was $1696696 2008
$1728780

tJ An Administration service fee is charged by the Company to Ask Funding NZ Limited and ARC Legal Pty Ltd This fee
represents the reimbursement of the costs of all operational functions provided by the Company to Ask Funding NZ
Limited and ARC Legal Pty Ltd

25 Consolidated entities

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries in

accordance with the accounting policy described in note 1b
Country of

Name of entity Incorporation Class of shares Equity holding

2009 2008

Parent entity

Ask Funding Limited formerly Impact Capital Limited

Subsidiaries

ACN 109 006 126 Pty Ltd formerly Impact Funding

Limited Australia Ordinary 100 100
Just Ask Pty Ltd formerly Ask Funding Pty Ltd Australia

Ordinary 100 100ARC Legal Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100
Impact Capital Pty Ltd formerly Property Marketing

C2 Finance Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 100
Impact Funding Pty Ltd Australia

Ordinary 100 100
Impact Capital Aust Pty Ltd formerly Property Stream

2i1 Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 100
Inheritance Funding Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 100----
Impact Litigation Management Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100
Ask Funding NZ Limited formerly Impact Funding NZ
Limited New Zealand Ordinary 100 100-----
Impact Funding NZ Limited New Zealand Ordinary 100

These subsidiaries are dormant companies

The above ownership interest reflects the legal structure of the consolidated entity

In the financial statements of the Company investments in controlled entities and associates are measured at
cost and included with other financial assets
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26 Contingencies

The directors of the Company are not aware of any material contingent liabilities that exist in respect of either the

Company or any of its controlled entities

EEEE 27 Commitments

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities is as follows

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Intangible assets Computer software

Payable

Within one year 541.055 541.055

541.055 541.055

Lease commitments

Operating leases

The Group leases various offices under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within two to five years The leases

have varying terms escalation clauses and renewal rights On renewal the terms of the leases are renegotiated

The Group also leases office equipment under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within three to four years The

leases have no escalation clauses or renewal terms-J
Consolidated The Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation

to non-cancellable operating leases are payable as

follows

Within one year 349022 243548 253443 243548

Later than one year but not later than five years 215.050 464.573 207.053 464.573

564.072 708.121 460.496 708.121

121 The amounts recognised as an expense in the income statement are as follows

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Operating lease payments 232.545 227.856 221.148 222.474

ft1 28 Events occurring after the balance sheet date

There have been no events subsequent to balance date which would have material effect on the Groups financial

statements at 30 June 2009
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C_
Executive Option Scheme

The establishment of the Ask Funding Limited Executive Option Scheme was approved by shareholders at the annual

general meeting held on 21 November 2007 The Executive Option Scheme is designed to provide long-term incentives

for executives including executive directors to deliver long-term shareholder returns Under the plan executives are

granted options which only vest if the executive completes specified period of service Once vested the options remain

exercisable for period of between and years However the options issued can only be exercised in the event of the

Companys share price reaching certain qualifying prices which range from $0.80 to $1.50 When exercised each option is

converted into one ordinary share of the Company Participation in the plan is at the Boards discretion and no individual

has contractual right to participate in the plan or to receive any guaranteed benefits

Options are granted under the plan for no consideration and carry no dividend or voting rights

The exercise price of options is determined by the directors but is no less than the volume weighted average price at which

the Companys shares are traded on the Australian Stock Exchange during the five trading days immediately before the

options are granted or such other price as approved by shareholders at general meeting

Set out below are summaries of options granted under the plan

Balance at Granted Exercised ForfeIted Balance at Vested at

Exercise start of the during the during the during the end of the end of the

Grant Date Expiry date price year year year year year year

Number Number Number Number Number Number

Consolidated and the company 2009

23 November 23 November

2007 2012 $0.645 420000 420000 140000

23 November 23 November

2007 2012 $0.600 1.110.000 1110.000 370.000

Total 1.530.000 1.530.000 510.000

Weighted average exercise price $0.612 $- $- $- $0.612 $0.612

Consolidated and the company 2008

23 November 23 November

2007 2012 $0.645 420000 420000

23 November 23 November

2007 2012 $0.600 1.110.000 1.110.000

Total 1.530.000 1.530.000

Weighted average exercise price $- $0.612 $- $- $O.612 $-

No options expired during the period

No vested options are exercisable at the end of the year due to the qualifying share price hurdle not being met

Fair value of options granted

No options were granted during the year ended 30 June 2009

The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted during the year ended 30 June 2008 was an average of 16 cents

per option The fair value at grant date is determined using Black-Scholes and Binomial option pricing models that take

into account the exercise price the term of the option the impact of dilution the share price at grant date and expected

price volatility of the underlying share the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 30 June 2008 included

options are granted for no consideration and vest based on the completion of specified period of service

options are exercisable only in the event of the Companys share price reaching certain qualifying prices during

the life of the options with such prices ranging between $0.80 and $1.50 Options are exercisable for period

of between two and four years after vesting
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exercise price $0.60 or $0.645

grant date 23 November 2007

expiry date 23 November 2012

share price at grant date $0.69

expected price volatility of the companys shares 32%

expected dividend yield nil

risk-free interest rate 6.115%

Expenses arising from share-based payment transactions

Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised during the period as part of employee benefit

expense were as follows

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Options issued under Executive Option Scheme 101.634 93.062 101.634 93.062

101.634 93.062 101.634 93.062

ftIj
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30 Reconciliation of profit loss after income tax to net cash flow from operatIng activities

Consolidated The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Profit loss for the year 3544686 1927141 2127332 1670904
f_J Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortisation 102933 121522 106219 121029

Change in fair value of investments 9444 9444

Foreign exchange gain loss

Net loss on sale of Impact Holdings UK Plc investment

heldforsale 233107 233107

Net loss on sale of Impact Holdings UK Plc shares

and options 574710 574710

Impairment of loans and advances 2152462 300249 1925296 350519

Interest income 14489814 11369572 14000084 10893517
Fee income 1745022 982461 1690857 947335
Interest expense 3764177 3391130 3764177 3391118
Non-cash employee benefits expense employee share

options 101634 93062 101634 93062

Other income accrued 306639 80026
Income tax expense/beneflt 1449128 1215473 908132 1107126
Change in operating assets and liabilities

Decrease Increase in trade and other receivables 2500 414 2500 414

Decrease Increase in capitalised interest

Decrease Increase in intangible assets 165625 165625
Decrease Increase in other assets 25655 50778 30557 62762
Increase decrease in trade and other payables 43895 219706 2103848 200545
Increase decrease in provisions and employee

benefits 97665 263610 101939 288897
_-J Interest paid 4091970 2332672 4091969 2332661

Interest and fees received 11009437 7492797 10712443 6964566
Income tax paid 2.249.106 860.000 2.249.106 860.000

Net cash inflow from operating activities 399.235 246.882 492.831 170.860
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Ask Funding Limited

in the directors opinion

Directors declaration

30 June 2009

DD

dL

the financial statements and notes and the Remuneration report in the Directors report set out on pages to 13

are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 including

giving true and fair view of the Companys and Groups financial position as at 30 June 2009 and of

their performance for the financial year ended on that date and

ii complying with Australian Accounting Standards inciuding the Australian Accounting interpretations and

the Corporation Regulations 2001

the financial report also complies with International Financiai Reporting Standards as disclosed in note

there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company wiii be able to pay its debts as and when they become

due and payable

The directors have been given the dedarations by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer required by

section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001

This declaration is made in accordance with resolution of the directors

Brisbane

21 August 2009

Kenneth Rich
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independent auditors report to the members of Ask Funding Limited formerly Impact Capital Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Ask Funding Limited the Company which comprises the balance

sheets as at 30 June 2009 and the income statements statements of changes in equity and cash flow statements for the

year ended on that date summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes to 30 and the

directors declaration of the Group comprising the Company and the entities it controlled at the years end or from time to

time during the financial year

Directors responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in

accordance with Australian Accounting Standards including the Australian Accounting Interpretations and the

Corporations Act 2001 This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation

Q\ and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error selecting

and applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances

In note 1a the directors also state in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of

Financial Statements that the financial report of the Group and of the company comprising the financial statements and

notes complies with International Financial Reporting Standards

Auditors responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit We conducted our audit in

accordance with Australian Auditing Standards These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical

requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the

financial report is free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial

report The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgement including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial report whether due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments the auditor

considers internal control relevant to the entitys preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the entitys internal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial report

We performed the procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly in accordance

with the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting Standards including the Australian Accounting Interpretations

view which is consistent with our understanding of the Companys and the Groups financial position and of their

performance

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our audit opinion

Independence

In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001

Auditors opinion

In our opinion

CIi1 the financial report of Ask Funding Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 including

giving true and fair view of the Companys and the Groups financial position as at 30 June 2009 and of their

performance for the year ended on that date and

fJ
ii complying with Australian Accounting Standards including the Australian Accounting interpretations and the

Corporations Regulations 2001

the financial report of the Group also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in

note 1a
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independent auditors report to the members of Ask Funding Limited formerly impact Capital Limited

continued

Report on the remuneration report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in section of the directors report for the year ended 30 June 2009

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the remuneration report in accordance

with Section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the remuneration report

based on our audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards

Auditors opinion

1j In our opinion the remuneration report of Ask Funding Limited for the year ended 30 June 2009 complies with Section

300A of the Corporations Act 2001

KPft\ft
KPMG

1C4

Jillian Richards

ç\v
Padner

Brisbane

21 August 2009

i5
EJ

\____
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FY2009 Highlights

Normalised pre-tax operating profit up 25% to $5.Om

Net profit after tax up 84% to $3.5m

Maiden final fully-franked dividend of .3c share

Net interest and fee income up 39% to $1 2.5m

Gross loan book up 3.7% to $66.9m

Impairment provisioning increased to 300 basis points of gross loan book in response

to operating climate

Debt facility of $55.5m in place until September 2010

Dividend Reinvestment Plan DRP introduced

Ask posts 25% lift in FY09 pre-tax profit and declares maiden dividend

NICHE lender Ask Funding Limited ASX Code AKF has posted 25 percent lift in

normalised operating profit before tax to $5.0 million for the year to June 30 2009 from $4.0

--- million previously and declared maiden final fully-franked dividend of 1.3 cents share

Profit after tax increased 84 percent to $3.5 million from $1.9 million previously while earnings

per share increased 80 percent from 3.0 cents to 5.4 cents

Managing Director Russell Templeton said the pre-tax operating result in line with earlier

guidance of $4.9 million to $5.2 million was pleasing given the prevailing economic climate

ft and reflected the success of the Companys focus on cost control and risk management

r1 We expect to achieve increased growth levels in FY20 10 underpinned by the recent launch

of new broad-based sales and marketing campaign to promote our Injury Loan product he

said This is part of broader strategy to elevate the Injury Loan product to represent

higher percentage of the Groups gross loan book

Results at glance
FY09 FY08 Change

$000s $000s--Revenue net interest and fee income 12471 8961 39
Expenses excluding impairment and loan recovery costs 4969 4701
Impairment of loans and advances 2152 300 617

iEEP Loan recovery costs 356
Normalised operating profit before tax 4994 3960 25

--- Gain loss on UK investment 817
Profit before income tax 4994 3143 59

Li Income tax expense 1449 1216
Net profit attributable to members 3545 1927 84

1800587 827

1300 727 390

POBox7lll

Riverside Centrs

Brisbane QId 4001

Tlàp.Iuedky
ARudrq LM
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Revenue

Consolidated revenue representing net interest and fee income was up 39 percent to $12.5

million from $9.0 million previously reflecting both higher margin and an increase in the

average gross loan book to $65.7 million from $52.0 million previously

The higher margin reflected both an increase in the average effective interest rate on loans

and advances and decrease in funding costs compared the prior year

Operating expenses
Cash expenses excluding loan recovery costs have increased by percent to $4.9 million

However the increase is attributable to marketing costs of $0.6 million 2008 $0.4 million IT

systems development costs of $0.1 million 2008 nil and costs of outsourcing inbound calls of

$0.lmillion all of which are strategic investments to ensure scalability of operations and

sustainability of profits

Loan recovery costs of $0.4 million 2008 nil reflected the deployment of additional resources

toward recoveries and the cost of actions to enhance the Companys security position over

underlying asset pools These actions taken as part of the Companys risk management

strategy are expected to provide benefits in future reporting periods

impairment expense and provisioning

In line with the strategy outlined in August 2008 Mr Templeton said Ask had operated

throughout the year in steady state and within the constraints of its available capital

position while focusing on maximising profit

Our gross loan book including principal and interest grew by about percent to $67 million

\j while gross debt was held steady at $45 million Mr Templeton said

However due to the deterioration in the economy the resultant drop in asset values

--- corresponding increase in bankruptcies and spike in unemployment rates the Board has

prudently decided to raise the impairment provision against the gross loan book to 300 basis

points

In light of the prevailing economic conditions Ask has also restricted lending in its

Matrimonial Settlement and Inheritance Funding products until the general market stabilises

ft and demonstrates sustained trend

However the current level of provisioning reflects peak and is expected to regularise in line

with the economic conditions over subsequent reporting periods

Dividend and Dividend Reinvestment Plan

Mr Templeton said Asks capacity to significantly increase profits in the face of the Global

Financial Crisis had clearly demonstrated the resilience and sustainability of the Companys
leveraged business model

The maturity and validity of the business has been further highlighted by Bankwest

Corporates strong level of support in approving the Boards decision to declare maiden fully

franked final dividend of 1.3 cents share he said

The dividend will be payable to eligible shareholders on 19 November 2009 subject to

record date of 12 October 2009

In order to provide the shareholders with cost effective method of increasing their

shareholding as well as to assist in the conservation of capital Dividend Reinvestment Plan

DRP has been introduced in time for shareholders to reinvest all or some of the final dividend

in additional Ask Funding Limited shares at discount of 2.5% to the Issue Price



The Plan rules are being released today and the relevant documentation for the DRP and

payment of the dividend will be mailed to shareholders shortly

Debt Facility

Mr Templeton said Bankwest Corporate had recently advised the Board that it would entertain

an application for an extension of the Companys current $55.5 million loan facility

However given the favourable terms of the current facility and signs of improvement in the

debt markets the Board has resolved not to disturb the existing arrangement he said

Mr Templeton said he remained confident negotiation of an extension of the current loan

ED agreement or the establishment of an alternative line of credit would be successfully

concluded prior to expiry of the Bankwest Corporate facility in September 2010

OUTLOOK

As part of an overall strategy to increase growth and as statement of confidence in the

sustainability of the business model the Board has committed in excess of $1.0 million to the

replacement of the Groups existing lending platform

This is expected to not only improve efficiency and risk mitigation but provide an increased

level of operational visibility using greatly improved analytics and reporting functions

Mr Templeton said Ask had also just launched major broad-based sales and marketing

campaign

The aim of the campaign which is being rolled out in several stages is to substantially

increase the size of our personal injury loan book through the promotion of new sub-brand

-___ Injury Loan he said

Demand for our personal injury claim product and outlay disbursement funding for key legal

firms and their clients remain constant while repayment of these type of loans relies on the

achievement of legal settlements unaffected by the economic downturn he said

Ask currently has $12 million in un-drawn loan funds under the current facility to meet ongoing
__J client demand as well as holding further $1 million in cash reserves at any one time

Ci The Company recently reviewed the Federal Governments proposed new National Consumer
Credit Protection Bill 2009 which was released for public comment in April this year and

anticipates minimal if any impact on the business

ABOUT ASK FUNDING
Ask Funding Limited formerly Impact Capital Limited was the first mainstream pre-settlement

lender to list on the Australian Securities Exchange

The companys main product offerings relate to

Personal injury claims

Matrimonial settlements

Inheritance Funding and

Outlay disbursement funding for key legal firms and their clients



For further Information please contact

Russell Templeton

Managing Director

610 73211 8000

610 407 639 622

Media

Richard Owen

Associate Three Plus

61 35035700

71 0412869937
Email Richard@threeplus.com.au

Alison Hill

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

61 07 3211 8000

61 0411 488850

JLJ
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Appendix 3Z

Appendix 3Z

Final Directors Interest Notice

Rule 3.1 9A .3

Final Directors Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available Information and

documents given to ASX become ASXs property and may be made public

Introduced 30/9t2001

ame of entity ASK FUNDING LIMiTED

BN 22094503385

We the entity give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.3 and as agent for the

director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act

Name of director LAWRENCE JAMES LITZOW

Date of last notice 30 August 2007

Date that director ceased to be director 21 August 2009

Part 1Directors relevant Interests in securities of which the director Is the registered holder

In the case of trust this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the trust

Note In the case of company interests which come within paragraph of the definition of notiflable interest of director should be

disclosed in this part

See chapter 19 for defined terms

Number class of securities

11/3/2002 Appendix 3Z Page



Appendix 3Z

Final Directors Interest Notice

rT

RJL1

Part Directors relevant interests in securities of which the director Is not the registered

holder

Note In the case of company interests which come within paragraph ii of the definition of notiflable interest of director should be

disclosed in this part

In the case of trust this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the trust

Part Directors interests in contracts

Detail of contract N/A

Nature of interest N/A

Name of registered holder N/A

if issued securities

No and class of securities to N/A

which interest relates

See chapter 19 for defined terms

Name of holder nature of interest Number class of securities

Note Pmvide details of the circumstances giving rise to

the relevant interest

Ordinary fully paid shares

Weir River Consulting Pty Ltd

shareholder 1600000

Dominion Credit Pty Ltd

shareholder 880.000

2.480.000

Appendix 3Z Page 11/3/2002
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Introduction of Dividend Reinvestment Plan

The Board of Directors of Ask Funding Limited ASXAKF is pleased to announce the

implementation of dividend reinvestment plan DRP for shareholders copy of the Plan

Rules is attached and is available on the Companys website www.askfunding.com.au

The DRP will enable shareholders to reinvest their dividend in Ask Funding Limited shares

and is available for the 2009 final dividend

The Issue Price will be determined by calculating the volume weighted average price for the

five trading days commencing two trading days subsequent to the dividend record date

The relevant documentation in respect of the DRP and dividend elections will be mailed to

shareholders in September 2009

Russell Templeton

Managing Director

61 07 3211 8000

61 0407 639 622

Alison Hill

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

61 07 3211 8000

61 0411 488850

SEC Mail
Processg
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ABOUT ASK FUNDING
Ask Funding Limited formerly Impact Capital Limited was the first mainstream pre-settlement

lender to list on the Australian Securities Exchange

The companys main product offerings relate to

Personal injury claims

Matrimonial settlements

Inheritance Funding and

Outlay disbursement funding for key legal firms and their clients

For further information please contact

1800 587 827

F1300727390

POBox7lll

Rtveside Centie

BrisbaneQld400l
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.- l800justask.com.au
BRISBANE SYDNEY MELBOURNE PERTH AUCKLAND
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Ask Funding Limited

Dividend Reinvestment Plan Rules
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Ask Funding Limited

Dividend Reinvestment Plan Rules

Eligibility and participation in the Plan

2.1 Eligible Shareholders

Only Eligible Shareholders may participate in the Plan

2.2 No transfer

Participation in the Plan is optional and not transferable

2.3 DRP Election Form

To apply to participate in the Plan Eligible Shareholders must complete sign

and lodge DRP Election Form with the Share Registry

The Company may also allow Eligible Shareholders to lodge DRP Election

Forms electronically either through the Companys website or that of an

authorised third party The availability if any of such facility will be referred

to on the Companys website and announced to ASX Any DRP Election

Forms so lodged must comply with the applicable terms and conditions of the

facility

2.4 Joint holders

All joint holders of Shares must sign single DRP Election Form for it to be

valid If one or more of the joint holders of the Shares is not an Eligible

Shareholder none of the joint holders can apply to participate in the Plan

with respect to the Shares jointly held

2.5 Multiple shareholdlng accounts

If an Eligible Shareholder has more than one holding of Shares and wishes

to participate in the DRP with respect to one or more such holding DRP
Election Form must be lodged with respect to each separate shareholding

Ask Funding Limited

DMdend Reinvestment Plan Rules 31 July 2009

The Plan

The Plan and these Rules will commence operation on such date as the

Directors determine

Page



Degree of participation

3.1 Participation

An Eligible Shareholder who wishes to participate in the Plan must elect on

the DRP Election Form the degree to which the shareholder wishes to

participate in the Plan Participation in the Plan may be

full participation for all the Participants shareholding from time to

time or

partial participation for specific number of Shares nominated by the

Participant together with the Shares issued under the Plan and any

bonus shares issued in respect of Plan Shares If at the record date

for Dividend the number of Shares held by the Participant is fewer

than the nominated number then the Plan will apply only to that

lesser number for that Dividend

3.2 Limited participation

Despite Rule 3.1 the Directors may at any time by written notice to Eligible

Shareholders limit participation in the Plan by limiting the amount of Dividend

which may be reinvested under the Plan

-I

3.3 Application taken to be for full participation

DRP Election Form received by the Company is taken to be an application

for full participation in the Plan for all shareholding accounts of the Eligible

-i Shareholder if the Eligible Shareholder does not clearly indicate

the shareholding account to which the election form applies or

the degree of participation in the Plan

An Eligible Shareholder is not entitled to notice under this Rule 3.3

3i Acceptance of applications

4.1 Directors discretion

____ The Directors may in their absolute discretion accept or refuse any DRP
Election Form without being bound to give any reason for doing so

4.2 RejectIon of DRP ElectIon Form

LiL If the Directors refuse to accept DRP Election Form the Company must

notify the Eligible Shareholder as soon as practicable that the DRP Election

Form has been rejected

Ask Funding Limited

DMdend Reinvestment Plan Rules 31 July 2009 Page



4.3 Effectiveness of DRP Election Form

Subject to Rule 4.1 an Eligible Shareholders participation in the Plan will

commence from the first Dividend payment after receipt of the DRP Election

Form provided it is received before the record date for that Dividend and will

continue until

it is superseded by later Notice of Variation

termination of the Participants participation in the Plan or

the Plan is suspended or terminated

4.4 Record of DRP Participation

The Company will record for each shareholding account of each Participant

particulars of

the name and address of the Participant and

the number of Plan Shares held by the Participant from time to time

The Companys records will be conclusive evidence of the matters so

recorded

4.5 Significance of applying

By applying to participate in the Plan in accordance with Rule an applicant

warrants to the Directors that it is an Eligible Shareholder

authorises the Directors and their officers or agents to correct any

error in or omission from the applicants DRP Election Form or any

later Notice of Variation

I-1
acknowledges that the Company may at any time irrevocably

determine that the applicants DRP Election Form is valid in

accordance with these Rules even if the DRP Election Form is

incomplete contains errors or is otherwise defective

acknowledges that the Directors may reject any DRP Election Form

acknowledges the discount if any applicable under Rule 5.4 may be

different from one Dividend to the next and

acknowledges that none of the Directors the Company or the Share

jL Registry has provided the applicant with investment advice or financial

product advice and that none of the above has any obligation to

provide such advice concerning its decision to apply to participate in

the Plan

Ask Funding Limited
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Reinvestment of Dividends

5.1 Reinvestment

Dividends on Plan Shares will be applied by the Company on the

Participants behalf in acquiring Shares Any Dividends on Plan Shares

_______
which the Company is entitled to retain under its Constitution or otherwise

will not be available for acquiring Shares

çciitl Any portion of Participants Dividends on Plan Shares

which is deductible by the Company as withholding tax or

which the Company is entitled or required to withhold or deduct for

any reason from the Dividend payable to that Participant

will not be applied to acquire Plan Shares

5.2 Plan accounts

The Directors will establish and maintain Plan account for each

shareholding account of each Participant At the time of each Dividend

payment the Directors will

determine the Dividend payable in respect of the Plan Shares which

may be reinvested under the Plan before any deduction referred to in

below

determine where applicable the amount to be withheld or deducted

under Rule 5.1 and any other sum the Company is entitled to retain in

respect of the Plan Shares

credit the amount in above and debit any amount in above to

the Participants Plan account

determine the maximum whole number of Shares which can be

acquired under these Rules by dividing the amount in the Participants

Plan account by the Issue Price and rounding to the nearest whole

Share with 0.5 of Share rounded down and

on behalf of and in the name of the Participant subscribe for the

number of Shares determined under above and debit the

aggregate Issue Price for those Shares against the balance in the

Participants Plan account

5.3 Entitlement formula

The number of Shares issued to each Participant will be the whole number

equal to or when not whole number be rounded to the nearest whole

Share with 0.5 of Share rounded down

Ask Funding Limited
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The number of Shares will be calculated in accordance with the following

formula

DT

where

is the Dividend payable on the Participants Plan

Shares as at the record date for that Dividend which

may be reinvested under the Plan

is any withholding tax or other sum the Company is

entitled to deduct or retain in relation to the Dividend or

the Plan Shares and

is the Issue Price

Shares will not be issued under the Plan if the issue of such Shares would

breach any provision of any applicable law

5.4 No discount unless otherwise determined__
No discount will apply for the purposes of calculating the Issue Price unless

the Directors determine otherwise If the Directors resolve from time to time

to apply discount for the purposes of calculating the Issue Price the

discount must not exceed percentage amount determined by the Directors

Any discount determined by the Directors in respect of the Plan for

particular Dividend may differ from any discount determined by the Directors

UJ in respect of the Plan for any other Dividend

The discount allocated for particular Dividend

may be nil and

may be varied by announcement on the Companys website and to

ASX at any time but any variation will not apply to Dividends already

announced

5.5 Statements

As soon as practicable after each issue of Shares under the Plan the

ii
Company will send to each Participant for each shareholding account

Li statement setting out

the number of the Participants Plan Shares on the record date for the

relevant Dividend

the Dividend payable in respect of that Participants Plan Shares

which has been applied towards acquiring additional Shares

Ask Funding Limited
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if applicable the amount of any withholding tax or other amount under

Rule 5.2b which has been deducted or retained from the Dividend

payment on the Participants Plan Shares

the number issue price and issue date of additional Shares allotted to

that Participant under the Plan and

_____ the number of Shares including Plan Shares in respect of which that

Participant is the registered holder after the allotment

5.6 Equal ranking

All Shares issued under the Plan will from the date of issue rank equally in all

respects with existing Shares

5.7 Allotment and despatch of statements

Shares to be issued under the Plan will be issued within the time required by

the ASX and shareholder statements for the Shares will be despatched as

soon as practicable after issue if so required by the Constitution

5.8 Quotation on ASX

The Company will make application promptly after any issue of Shares under

the Plan for quotation of those Shares on ASX if other Shares of the

Company are quoted at that time

Variation or termination of participation

6.1 Notice of Variation

By lodging with the Company Notice of Variation Participant may

increase or decrease the number of its Plan Shares or

terminate its participation in the Plan

______ Notice of Variation must be lodged for each shareholding account To be

effective for future Dividend the Notice of Variation must be received by

the Company before the record date for that Dividend

6.2 ParticIpation taken to be terminated

If Participant disposes of all the Participants Shares without giving the

LJL Company Notice of Variation and is not registered as holder of any
L_ Shares at the record date for payment of Dividend the Participant is taken

to have terminated participation on the last date when the Company

registered transfer of the Participants Shares

Ask Funding Limited
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6.3 Part disposal and no notice

When Participant disposes of part of the holding of Shares of that

Participant and does not notify the Company otherwise the Shares disposed

of to the extent possible will be taken to be

first Shares which are not Plan Shares and

secondly Plan Shares

6.4 Termination on death or bankruptcy

If Participant dies participation in the Plan terminates upon receipt by the

Directors of written notice of the death If Participant is declared bankrupt

or is wound-up participation in the Plan terminates upon receipt by the

Directors of notification of bankruptcy or winding-up from the Participant or

the Participants trustee in bankruptcy or liquidator as the case may be The

death bankruptcy or winding up of one or more joint holders does not

automatically terminate participation provided the remaining holder or all

remaining joint holders are Eligible Shareholders

Modification suspension and termination of the Plan

7.1 Directors may act

The Plan may be

modified including by variation of the Rules

suspended

recommenced or

terminated by the Directors at any time

7.2 ModificatIon

______ If the Plan or Rules are modified Participant continues to participate under

the Plan unless the Participant terminates its participation in the Plan by

submitting Notice of Variation in accordance with Rule 6.1 or is taken to

have terminated its participation under Rule 6.2 or Rule 6.4

7.3 Suspension

ftft If the Plan is suspended Participants elections as to participation in the Plan

cease to be effective and all Shares are taken not to be Plan Shares for the

purpose of any Dividend declared while the Plan is suspended

7.4 No Dividends during suspension

While the Plan is suspended Dividends on Plan Shares will not be applied

by the Directors on the Participants behalf in acquiring Shares

Ask Funding Limited
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7.5 Recommencement

If the Plan is recommenced following suspension for

less than two consecutive Dividend payment dates the Participants

previously suspended DRP Election Form will be reinstated and be

valid and effective in accordance with these Rules for the purposes of

______ the recommenced Plan unless determined otherwise by the Directors

and notified to Participants in accordance with Rule 7.6 or

two or more consecutive Dividend payment dates each Participant

who wishes to participate in the recommenced Plan must complete

and submit new DRP Election Form in accordance with Rule 2.3

7.6 Notice

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors the Company will give notice

of any

termination of the Plan to Participants at least one month before the

effective date of the termination

_______
variation of the Plan or Rules other than simply an exercise of

discretion authority or power under these Rules to Eligible

Shareholders at least one month before the effective date of the

vanation and

suspension or recommencement of the Plan to Participants as

soon as reasonably practicable before or after the effective date of the

suspension or recommencement

Notice may be provided in any manner including but not limited to by public

J1 announcement advertisements in any newspapers circulating generally in

Australia notice on the Companys website announcement to ASX or mailed

written notices which the Directors consider appropriate to bring the

termination variation suspension or recommencement to the notice of the

\.JLj Participants or Eligible Shareholders as the case may be having regard to

the nature of the event for which notice is being given

7.7 No liability

_____
Any variation suspension recommencement or termination of the Plan will

not give rise to any liability on the part of or right of action against the

ED Company or its Directors officers employees representatives or agents

7.8 Omission or non-receIpt of notice

The accidental omission to give notice of variation suspension or termination

to any Participant or the non-receipt of any notice by any Participant will not

invalidate the variation suspension or termination of the Plan
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Administration of the Plan

This Plan will be administered by the Directors who have the power to

p1

p1

determine procedures for administration of the Plan consistent with

the Rules

settle in such manner as they think expedient any difficulties

anomalies or disputes which may arise in connection with or by

reason of the operation of the Plan whether generally or in relation to

any Participant or any Shares and the determination of the Directors

is to be conclusive and binding on all Participants and other persons

to whom the determination relates

arrange for the Plan to be fully or partially underwritten in respect of

any dividends and

delegate to any one or more persons for such period and on such

conditions as they may determine the exercise of any of their powers

or discretions arising under the Plan

Notwithstanding anything else in these Rules this Plan must be administered

in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Constitution

Participants to be bound

Participants are at all times bound by the Rules

10 Costs to Participants

No brokerage commission or other transaction costs will be payable by

Participants in respect of Shares issued under the Plan However the

Company does not assume liability for any taxes or other imposts assessed

against or imposed on Participant

11 Governing law

These Rules will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws

of Queensland
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12 Additional information

copy of the Companys most recent annual report and financial statements

is available to every Eligible Shareholder free of charge by

downloading the documents from the Companys website

www.askfundlng.com.au or

downloading the documents from the ASX website

_____ www.asx.com.au the Companys ASX code is AKFor

on request by contacting the Share Registry

www.computershare.com.au

13 Interpretation

13.1 DefinItions

The following words have these meanings in these Rules unless the

contrary intention appears

ASX means ASX Limited ABN 98008 624 691 the Australian Securities

Exchange or the Australian Stock Exchange as appropriate

Board means the board of Directors of the Company from time to time

Company means Ask Funding Limited ACN 094 503 385

Constitution means the constitution of the Company as amended from time

to time

Directors means the directors of the Company acting as board or any duly

appointed committee of the Board

Dividend means cash dividend or cash component of dividend paid by
the Company

DRP Election Form means the application to participate in the Plan in

respect of particular shareholding account in the form that the Directors

_____ from time to time approve

Eligible Shareholder means person registered as the holder of Shares

other than

person with registered address in any place where in the

reasonable opinion of the Directors participation or the making of an

offer or invitation to participate in the Plan is unlawful or would require

compliance with conditions which the Directors in their sole discretion

regard as unacceptable or unduly onerous or

Ask Funding Limited
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person whose participation in the Plan would otherwise in the

reasonable opinion of the Directors be unlawful impractical

impossible or would have an adverse effect on the regulatory

approvals or licences which the Company holds or for which it intends

to apply

Issue Price means in respect of any issue of Shares under the Plan the

arithmetic average of the daily volume weighted average market price

rounded to the nearest cent of all Shares sold through Normal Trade

on the ASX automated trading system during period of not more than 10

trading days as determined by the Board from time to time commencing two

trading days after the record date or any other date as determined by the

Board in respect of the relevant Dividend less discount if any as

determined by the Directors under Rule 5.4

The weighted average market price referred to above will be calculated by

the Board or another suitable person nominated by the Board by reference

to information the Board approves for the purpose from time to time The

determination by the Board of the price will be binding on all Participants

Listing Rules means the Listing Rules of ASX

Normal Trade means all trades excluding special trades such as special

crossings overseas trades option exercise trades and any other trade

determined by the Board in its complete discretion to not be reflective of

Ccii
normal trading in Shares

Notice of Variation means notice in the form that the Directors from time

ED to time approve for Participant to increase or decrease the number of the

Participants Plan Shares

Participant means an Eligible Shareholder whose application to participate

in the Plan in respect of particular shareholding account has been accepted

by the Directors

Plan means the Ask Funding Limited Dividend Reinvestment Plan the terms

of which are set out in these Rules

t__
Plan Shares means the Shares in particular shareholding account which

are designated by Participant as Shares the Dividend on which is to be

applied in subscribing for Shares under the Plan

Rules means the rules of the Plan as varied from time to time

fi fl
Shares means fully paid ordinary shares in the Company and any other

shares issued by the Company that the Directors decide are eligible for

participation in the Plan

Share Registry means the share registry that maintains the Share register of

the Company from time to time

Ask Funding Limited
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13.2 Reference to certain general terms

Unless the contrary intention appears reference in these Rules to

person the word person includes corporation and

singular Includes plural the singular includes the plural and vice

versa

ft

UJL
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ASX MEDIA RELEASE

BOARD CHANGES SUPPORT SUCCESSION AND RENEWAL PLAN

NICHE lender Ask Funding Limited ASX Code AKF advises that Mr Lawrie Litzow has

tendered his resignation as Director effective from midnight on August 21 2009 for

personal reasons

As part of process of Board succession planning and renewal Chairman Mr Ken Rich said

the Company had appointed highly credentialed advertising and marketing executive Mr Gavin

Partridge to the Board as his replacement effective from September 2009

Significantly Mr Partridges appointment follows the launch this month of major broad-

based sales and marketing campaign using variety of distribution channels and media

The aim of the campaign is to substantially increase the size of our personal injury loan book

and Gavins background and experience will be an invaluable resource as we press forward

with the rollout in several stages Mr Rich said As part of the campaign Ask Funding has

also adopted new sub-brand Injury Loan to help promote our key financial product more

effectively within the market place

Mr Partridge former managing director of marketing services for leading Australasian

advertising agency The Communications Group from 2003 to 2005 now sits on number of

private company boards in non-executive capacity and is the principal of The Company
Whisperer consultancy

Before joining The Communications Group Mr Partridge served for two years as director of

Asia Pacific operations for Bates Worldwide having spent the previous three years as Chief

Operating Officer and Managing Director Sydney for George Patterson Bates

Mr Rich said as previously advised the Company was also actively seeking another suitably

skilled replacement for outgoing Non-Executive Director Mr John Laurie who had tendered his

resignation effective at the Annual General Meeting to be held on November 19 this year

Mr Rich thanked Mr Litzow founding director and major shareholder for his significant

contribution toward the Companys establishment public listing and success to date

Importantly Mr Litzow who owns approximately 2.5 million shares in Ask Funding has also

advised the Board that he remains very satisfied with the way the Company is being managed
and at the present time has no intention of divesting any of his shares he said

Ask Funding will release its preliminary final result for the year to June 30 2009 on 21 Augus

1800 587 827

1300 727 390

Page P0 Box 7111

Riverside Centre

Brisbane Qid 4001

ThhpriitiiIa.md by

RudsLMih
N22ow5o3

l800justask.com.au

SEC Mail Processing

Section 7.SEP3Q A1cI
SLP 11 11JU9 .HTEN4

Vshinfl DC August 2009

I5
__.1

ici1

SRISSANE SYDNEY MELSOURNE PERTH AUCkLAND



AskJ
FUNDIP4O

money when It mattee

ABOUT ASK FUNDING
Ask Funding Limited formerly Impact Capital Limited was the first mainstream pre-settlement

lender to list on the Australian Securities Exchange

The companys main product offerings relate to

Personal injury claims

Matrimonial settlements

Inheritance Funding and

Outlay disbursement funding for key legal firms and their clients

For further information please contact

ci

1J

L4j

Media

Richard Owen

Associate Three Plus

61 35035700

61 412 869 937

Email Richard@threeplus.com.au

1800 587 827

1300 727 390

POBox7lll
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Brisbane QId 4001
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MFimn

A22oieo3an

Russell Templeton

Managing Director

61 07 3211 8000

610 407 639 622

Alison Hill

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

61 07 3211 8000

61 0411 488850
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Ask Funding Limited

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Previous corresponding period Year ended 30 June 2008

Results for Announcement to the Market

30 June 2009

___________ $000s

Revenue from ordinary activities net interest and fee

income

Appendix 4E item 2.1 up 39 to 12471

Profit loss from ordinary activities before tax up 59 to 4994

Profit loss from ordinary activities after tax

attributable to members

Appendix 4E item 2.2 up 84 to 3545

Net profit loss for the period attributable to

members

Appendix 4E item 2.3 up 84 to 3545

Record date for determining entitlements to dividend

Brief explanation necessary to enable the figures above to be understood is as follows

it4i4ppendix 4E ftem 2.6

Explanation of Revenue

Consolidated revenue representing net interest and fee income was up 39.0 percent to $12.5 million from $9.0 million

previously reflecting both an increased margin and an increase in the average gross loan book to $65.7 million compared

to $52.0 million in the prior year

The increased margin represents both an increase in the average effective interest rate on loans and advances and

decrease in funding costs associated with reduction in the average base funding rate BBSW to 520 basIs points

compared to 925 basis points in the prior year

fJhereporting period is from July 2008 to 30 June 2009 with the corresponding reporting period being from July 2007 to

30 June2008

p1
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Ask Funding Limited

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Previous correspondIng period Year ended 30 June 2008

Results for Announcement to the Market

30 June 2009

continued

Explanation of Profltlioss from ordinary activities before tax

The Groups operations have performed well in light of the difficult economic conditions that prevailed for the majority of

financial year resulting in an operating profit before tax of $5.0 million which represents 25 percent increase when

mpared with the prior year operating profit before tax and loss of sale of UK Investment of $4.0 million

The increased profit has been achieved despite significant increase in the provisioning for impaired loans to $2.2 million

from $0.3 million in the prior year reflecting the deterioration in the economy the resultant drop in asset values

corresponding increase in bankruptcies and spike in unemployment rates

Additionally loan recovery costs of $0.4 million have been incurred 2008 nil which represent additional resources

deployed in the course of loan recovery actions and other costs incurred to enhance the Groups security position the

benefit of which is expected to be more completely reflected in future reporting periods

Other expenses increased by 6.2 percent to $4.9 million with the increase is attributable to marketing costs of $0.6 million

2008 $0.4 million IT systems development costs of $0.1 million 2008 nil and costs of outsourcing inbound calls of

$0.1 million all of which are considered to be strategic investments to ensure scalability of operations and sustalnability of

profits

L.._I
Explanation of Net Proflt/Ioss attributable to members
For the year ended 30 June 2009 the consolidated net profit attributable to members was $3.5 million which represents

significant increase of 84 percent from the prior year profit after tax of $1.9 million

The prior year profit included loss on the sale of the remainder of the Companys passive Investment in Impact Holdings

UK Plc of $0.81 million No non-operating profits or losses are attributable to the current year profit

Dividend

As result of the significant increase in profitability the directors have recommended the payment of final dividend from

current year profits of 1.3 cents per share
fully franked The dividend will be paid on 19 November 2009 with record date

of 12 October 2009

Dividend Reinvestment Plan has been introduced and will apply to this dividend

Annual General MeetIng
The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at the offices of HopgoodGanim Lawyers Level Waterfront

Place Eagle Street Brisbane on Thursday 19 November 2009 at 11 .OOam

Audit status Appendix 4E item 15
This Appendix 4E and the attached financial statements have been audited
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